QUEANBEYAN DISTRICT CRICKET CLUB INC.

www.queanbeyancricket.com



Equitas, Instituto et Prosperitas

"The Mighty Bluebags"

2017-2018 ANNUAL REPORT

Table of Contents

CLUB HISTORY	4
CLUB PERPETUAL AWARDS	6
2017-2018 MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE	8
CLUB CAPTAINS	10
LIFE MEMBERS	11
CLUB SPONSORS & SUPPORTERS	12
PRESIDENT'S REPORT	14
SECRETARY'S REPORT	16
TREASURER'S REPORT	20
MAJOR AWARD WINNERS	21
INDIVIDUAL ACHIEVEMENTS	23
2017-2018 CLUB PERFORMANCES	24
REPRESENTATIVE HONOURS & SPECIAL AWARDS	25
PLAYER MILESTONES	26
PREMIERSHIP SCORECARDS	29
3rd Grade – Twenty/20 Cup Final 3rd Grade – One-day Cup Final 3rd Grade – FG Sides Memorial Trophy Final 4th Grade - One-day Cup Final 4th Grade - Ainslie CC Cup (Two-day) Final	29 30 31 32 33
FIRST GRADE REPORT	34
SECOND GRADE REPORT	36
THIRD GRADE REPORT	40
FOURTH GRADE REPORT	44
FIFTH GRADE REPORT	49
GREYBAGGERS REPORT	52
CLUB RECORDS	54
CLUB CHAMPIONSHIPS	54
1 st GRADE Team Records	54 <i>55</i>
Individual Records	55 55
Best Partnerships	55
Fastest Century	55
Quickest Century Partnership	55
2ND GRADE	56
Individual Records	56
3rd Grade	56
Individual Records	56
4TH GRADE	57
Individual Records	<i>57</i>
5TH GRADE	57
Individual Records (Post 2005)	57
Individual Records (Pre 2005) 6тн Grade	<i>57</i> 58
Individual Records	58
VETERANS COMPETITIONS	58

Team Records	58
Individual Records	58
Best Partnerships	59
Women's	60
(Formed 1984-85)	60
Premierships	60
Individual Records	60
Best Partnerships	60
Glenda Hall	60
Individual Records	60
Best Partnerships	60
APPENDIX A – SEASON STATISTICS	61

Editor's Note:

I would like to thank the following people whose contributions for this report were invaluable:

Rohan Ditton, Matt Harding, Peter Solway, Michael O'Rourke and Dom DiCampli

Ron Bates

Club History (Since 1972)

YEAR	PATRON	PRESIDENT	SECRETARY	TREASURER	CLUB COACH/ COORDINATOR	1st GRADE CAPTAIN	CLUB CHAMPION
72-73	L McIntyre	C Berry	L Buckley	R Davis	R Flockton	R Flockton	T Waters
73-74	L McIntyre	C Berry	S McDonald	R Davis	R Flockton	R Flockton	B Rogers
74-75	L McIntyre	C Berry	S McDonald	T Waters	R Flockton	R Flockton	R Coffey
75-76	L McIntyre	C Berry	R Sadler	R Davis	R Flockton	R Flockton	C Dooley
76-77	F Nash	W McDonald	R Sadler	R Harding	n/a	L Buckley	R Heading
77-78	F Nash	R Hatch	S Bailey	A Hodgson	G Samuels	R Heading	W Campbell
78-79	F Nash	R Hatch	S Bailey	A Hodgson	G Samuels	G Samuels	W Campbell
79-80	F Nash	R Hatch	S Bailey	D Murphy	G Samuels	G Samuels	N Bulger/C Berry
80-81	F Nash	R Hatch	S Bailey	D Murphy /C Brown	G Samuels	G Samuels	N Bulger
81-82	L Buckley	S Bailey	R Longmore	D Holzhauser	G Samuels	G Samuels	N Bulger
82-83	L Buckley	S Bailey/R Hatch	R Longmore	G Mann	G Samuels	G Samuels	W Campbell
83-84	L Buckley	G Samuels	M Allen	G Mann	G Samuels	G Samuels	M Lynch
84-85	I McNamee	G Mann	R Carruthers	J Solway	W Campbell	N Bulger	Not Awarded
85-86	I McNamee	G Mann	R Carruthers	J Solway	M Thornton	M Thornton	J Bull
86-87	I McNamee	P Moon	R Carruthers	J Solway	M Thornton	M Thornton	J Bull
87-88	I McNamee	P Moon	R Carruthers	J Solway	M Thornton	M Thornton	M Carruthers
88-89	I McNamee	P Moon	R Carruthers	J Solway	M Thornton	M Thornton	M Frost
89-90	I McNamee	P Moon	C Ball	I Hamill	J Bull	J Bull	P Solway
90-91	I McNamee	P Moon	J Solway	I Hamill	J Bull	J Bull	P Solway
91-92	I McNamee	P Moon	R Carruthers	J Solway	P Solway	P Solway	N Bulger
92-93	I McNamee	R Winchester	M Carruthers	J Solway	P Solway	P Solway	J Bull
93-94	I McNamee	R Winchester	M Carruthers	M Lynch	n/a	M Frost	R Regent
94-95	I McNamee	R Winchester	M Carruthers	H Greenwell	J Bull	J Bull	N Bulger
95-96	I McNamee	R Winchester	M Carruthers	H Greenwell	S O'Shaughnessy	S O'Shaughnessy	C Scammell
96-97	I McNamee	R Winchester	M Carruthers	H Greenwell	R Regent	R Regent	N Bulger
97-98	I McNamee	R Winchester	M Carruthers	M Lynch	R Regent	R Regent	M Higgs
98-99	I McNamee	R Winchester	M Carruthers	M Lynch	C Hume	J Swift	J Martin
99-00	I McNamee	R Winchester	M Carruthers	A King	C Hume	J Swift	J Swift
00-01	I McNamee	R Winchester	A King	S McGlashan	C Hume	J Swift	J Swift
01-02	I McNamee	M Frost	C Doyle	S McGlashan	P Nemes	M O'Rourke	A Heading
02-03	I McNamee	M Frost	S Cross	S McGlashan	P Nemes	M O'Rourke	S Frost
03-04	I McNamee	M Frost	S Cross	S McGlashan	P Nemes	S Frost	G McMahon

YEAR	PATRON	PRESIDENT	SECRETARY	TREASURER	CLUB COACH/ COORDINATOR	1st GRADE CAPTAIN	CLUB CHAMPION
04-05	I McNamee	M Frost	S Cross	S McGlashan	P Baker	P Coleborne	A Heading
05-06	I McNamee	M Frost	S Cross	S McGlashan	P Baker	A Heading	P Jensen
06-07	I McNamee	M Frost	S Cross	P Coleborne	P Baker	M Higgs	M Higgs
07-08	I McNamee	I McNamee	S Cross	G Elliott	P Baker	M Higgs	M Higgs
08-09	I McNamee	I McNamee	R Bates	G Elliott	P Solway/M Frost	M Higgs	J Dean
09-10	I McNamee	I McNamee	R Bates	G Elliott	P Solway/J Dean	J Dean	J Dean/M Higgs
10-11	I McNamee	I McNamee	R Bates	G Elliott	P Solway/J Dean	J Dean	M Higgs
11-12	I McNamee	P Solway	R Bates	G Elliott	P Solway	A Ayre	M Higgs
12-13	I McNamee	P Solway	R Bates	G Elliott	T Shiner	A Ayre	A Ayre/P Coleborne
13-14	I McNamee	P Solway	R Bates	M Harding	B Dean	B Dean	V Dukoski
14-15	I McNamee	P Solway	R Bates	M Harding	V Bennett	S Taylor	P Jensen
15-16	I McNamee	P Solway	R Bates	M Harding	M O'Rourke	V Dukoski	P Jensen
16-17	I McNamee	R Ditton	R Bates	M Harding	P Solway	V Dukoski	DJ Southwell
17-18	I McNamee	R Ditton	R Bates	M Harding	P Solway	M Spaseski	M Stachow

Club Perpetual Awards

(Since 1972)

YEAR	Malcolm Allen Memorial Award Outstanding Contribution	Ian McNamee Award Presidents Trophy	Greg Mann Memorial Award Players' Player	Most Promising Junior Player (Luke Bush Memorial Award since 2011)	John Solway Memorial Award Spirit of Cricket	Mark Higgs Medal
72-73				Not Awarded		
73-74				Geoff Hague		
74-75				Geoff Hague		
75-76				Ray Daniel		
76-77				Peter Hungerford		
77-78				Peter Hungerford		
78-79	Award first presented in			Not Awarded		
79-80	1986-87			Not Awarded		
80-81			Award first presented in	Not Awarded		
81-82			1990-91	Not Awarded		
82-83				Not Awarded		
83-84	83-84		<u> </u>	Not Awarded		
84-85				Stephen Frost		
85-86					Colin Corbett	
86-87	Neil Bulger	Award first presented in		Scott Bannerman	Award first presented in	Award first presented in
87-88	Mark Thornton	2003-04		Geoff McMurray	2009-10	2014-15
88-89	Peter Solway			Robert Regent		
89-90	Ian Hamill			Not Awarded		
90-91	Ian McNamee		Damien Tongs	Not Awarded		
91-92	Not Awarded		Mark Lynch	Mark Higgs		
92-93	Mark Lynch		Michael Nairn	Brad Haddin		
93-94	Geoff McMurray		Phil McMurray	Adrian Brunker		
94-95	Michael Frost & Michael Carruthers		Stephen Cross	Jeremy Eagle		
95-96	Greg Dawes		Matt Jackson	Peter Coleborne		
96-97	Simon McLoughlin		Hugh Renshaw	Adam Hatch		
97-98	John Regent		Brendan MacNamara	Chris Hamill		
98-99	Sarah McGlashan		Ashley King	Lucas James		
99-00	Ron McGlashan		Michael O'Rourke	Steven Hamill		
00-01	Ashley King		Graham Hannaford	Raglan Maddox		

YEAR	Malcolm Allen Memorial Award Outstanding Contribution	Ian McNamee Award Presidents Trophy	Greg Mann Memorial Award Players' Player	Most Promising Junior Player (Luke Bush Memorial Award since 2011)	John Solway Memorial Award Spirit of Cricket	Mark Higgs Medal
01-02	Michael Sargent Snr & Sarah McGlashan		Adam Heading	Steve Peios		
02-03	Ron McGlashan		Dean Stewart	Dean Stewart]	
03-04	Steve Donnelly	Ben Gray	Dean Mansfield	Michael Baker]	
04-05	Phil Noble	Simon Fahey	Simon Fahey	Em Preston]	
05-06	Peter Baker	Greg Dawes	Ben Stensrud	Callum Birtles]	
06-07	Dean Mansfield	Kyle Mackay-Laws	Peter Solway	Em Preston]	
07-08	Ron Bates	Gordon Elliott	Con Danassis	Jordan McLennan]	
08-09	James Buckley	Greg Dawes	Peter Coleborne	Dean Solway]	
09-10	Ian McNamee	Peter Solway	Adam Heading	Luke Bush	Lea Hansen	
10-11	Peter Solway	Stephen Cross	Darren Southwell	Aaron Ayre	Chris Doyle	
11-12	Gordon Elliott	Ron Bates	Vele Dukoski	Dean Solway	David & Ingrid Ayre	
12-13	Stephen Cross	Ron Bates	Aaron Ayre	Lakshmn Shivakumar	Derren & Ratsny Gillespie	
13-14	Matt Harding	Adrian Brunker	Darren Southwell	Mark Solway	Michael Curtale & Sam Taylor	
14-15	Ratsny Gillespie & Julie Solway	Rohan Ditton	Darren Southwell	Henry Hunt	David Horsfall	Ed Barnard
15-16	Adrian Brunker	Matt Harding	Henry Hunt	Kel Evans	Michael Medved	Henry Hunt
16-17	Dean Solway & Mark Solway	Michael Gilshenen	Josh Gregory	Tyler Van Luin	Abhinash Kumar	Mark Solway
17-18	Peter Solway	Darren Southwell	Michael Medved	Jack Allen	Tom Christou & Brad Moore	Vele Dukoski

2017-2018 Management Committee Patron



Mr Ian McNamee

Executive

President Vice President



Mr Stephen Cross

CIENTERIAN DICTOR

Vice President

Mr Adrian Brunker (Chairman of Selectors)

Honorary Secretary Honorary Treasurer



Mr Rohan Ditton

Mr Ron Bates



Mr Matthew Harding

General Committee



Mr Brad Falkenberg



Mr Chris Gane



Mr Derren Gillespie



Mr Dave Horsfall



Mr Stephen Moore



Mr Michael Stachow



Mr Mark Solway



Mr Peter Solway (Head Coach)



Mr Darren Southwell

Club Captains

2nd Grade



Mr Michael Spaseski 4th Grade



Mr Josh Gregory 5th Grade



Mr Peter Solway Greybaggers



Mr Adrian Brunker



Mr Dom DiCampli



Mr Stephen Moore

Life Members

```
Jack McNamara* (1960)
  Frank Nash* (1960)
  Doug Moore* (1967)
  Jan Armour* (1970)
    Col Berry (1977)
   Ray Hatch (1983)
  Stephen Bailey (1985)
  Gary Samuels (1985)
  John Solway* (1991)
 Richard Carruthers (1991)
 Fan McNamee (2001)
   Neil Bulger (2001)
  Michael Frost (2009)
  Stephen Cross (2009)
   Peter Solway (2009)
   Phil Moon* (2011)
  Stephen Frost (2011)
 Terry Freebody* (2012)
Winston McDonald (2012)
Graeme Alexander (2012)
  Lloyd Buckley (2013)
  Rod Winchester (2013)
  James Martin (2014)
 Ron McGlashan (2014)
    Ron Bates (2017)
```

Club Sponsors & Supporters

The Queanbeyan District Cricket Club would like to thank the following businesses and organisations for their support for the 2017-2018 season:

Major Sponsor Queanbeyan Kangaroo Club Ltd



Other Sponsors/Supporters













President's Report

2017/18 was another terrific season for the Bluebags. Premierships in 5th Grade, the 4th Grade one & two day competitions, and the clean sweep of the 3rd Grade. 2nd Grade were beaten 2 day grand finalists. And 1st Grade had an improved season after welcoming Spags back on board, beaten semi-finalists in the T/20 & 2 day competitions. We ran a very close second in the Club Championship which we won last season denied once again by the points distribution to clubs with teams in the Women's competition.

Big thanks to our coaching staff led by Head Coach Peter Solway running the Thursday sessions, and Fron & Crouchy running Tuesdays. Also thanks to Matty Phelps who did some work during the pre-season. We've had a good coaching structure the past few years, but we're looking to shake things up a bit next year with a focus on quality over quantity. The coaching staff and executive are discussing strategies for next season and will provide some info in the months ahead.

We continue to lead the ACT clubs in junior player development, as we have done for the past 10 or more years. I've spoken to numerous club representatives and they are all envious of our ability to not only identify and develop our talented juniors, but just as importantly retain our senior experienced players to provide the vital guidance required to transition the young kids into grade cricket.

Away from club cricket it's been another huge season, arguably our biggest ever in terms of extra games played on our grounds. Playing host various representative matches & carnivals, this season again saw us hosting The Comets in some preseason trials, the Defence Force, Over 60s & U/18 girl's nationals, as well as numerous junior comets. In total a staggering 112 days of cricket on our 2 grounds at Freebody. A massive thanks to everyone who volunteered their time in making these events possible, it's a huge logistical challenge running these carnivals but the benefits to the club make it well worth the effort.

Apart from success on the field, a big focus for the committee is continual improvement off the field – be that facilities, equipment, social etc. We have secured financial grants from the NSW Government and the Queanbeyan Palerang Regional Council which will allow us to continue to deliver for our members. Firstly, we have secured funding for a new electronic scoreboard at Freebody Oval. We are working on a joint venture with the Kangaroos Football club to ensure the needs of both our clubs are met. Special thanks to Mr John Barilaro, Member for Monaro and Deputy Premier of NSW, a proud supporter of the QDCC.

The council have also committed to building new storage facilities at Brad Haddin Oval, and Rockley Oval Googong – which will hopefully see us playing in Googong this coming season.

Thanks to all of our sponsors for their ongoing support, in particular the Queanbeyan Kangaroos Club who have been long time financial partners of the QDCC. The club wouldn't survive without our generous sponsors and we urge all our members to support them whenever they can. I was very pleased to announce at our presentation night that long serving Patron of the club, Mr Ian McNamee has confirmed his business Ian McNamee & Partners will come on board as major sponsors next season, a massive thanks to Macca and his board.

Ian has done more for cricket in the region than most people know, and was instrumental in securing funding for the pavilion as well as tipping his own hard earned into the project, which we will be forever grateful.

We're always on the lookout for new sponsors so if you any businesses that may be interested please get in touch.

I also must thanks our hardworking committee who all play a vital role in making ours the best run club in the region. We are all passionate about the Queanbeyan Cricket Club and we all want to the club to continue to improve – a strong, diverse committee ensures this.

Thanks again to our curator Greg Dawes, who continues to produce arguably the best wickets in the region and we are lucky to have him. His season started way back September when we hosted some preseason trials, right through to the grand finals in March. Also thanks to Batesy for his work on Brad Haddin Oval, producing some nice wickets down there.

Last but not least I need to thank my beautiful wife Angela for her support throughout the season. This role takes up a lot of time with the various meetings etc, not to mention the days spent on the field — or in the bar.....

Thanks, and look forward to seeing you all in 2018/19.

Rohan Ditton President

Secretary's Report

Another season has come and gone. I suppose to sum up the season in a few words it would be "Another Great Year for the Bluebags".

At the 2017 AGM, a huge accolade came my way when I was bestowed with Life Membership. This was something very special and is probably in the top 4 or 5 events in my life. It has been an honour and a privilege to be part of this great club. I hope I am able to continue to serve the club for many years to come.

This year saw a couple of new faces on the committee with Brad Falkenberg, Mark Solway, Chris Gane and Michael Stachow joining the group and we welcomed back Derren Gillespie who was able to provide a different perspective during committee deliberations.

As is the nature of sport these days we had some new faces join the club as well as the return of a couple of others such as Michael Spaseski (who took over captaincy in 1st grade) and at the other end of the scale, Dom Di Campli who took on the 5th grade captaincy.

Again the club's focus on junior development brought rewards with quite a few of the young blokes being selected in the various under age representative teams.

With 1st grade being more stable this season only a few Baggy Blues were handed out – Jack Allen, Abhinash Kumar and Brad Falkenberg all receiving their caps.

Again the current Club Championship points system did not favour us and we were runners up in the club championship, finishing only a few points behind Tuggeranong. The season will show that we qualified for 12 of the 13 semi-finals of all competitions going on to win 6.



3rd grade grabbed another 'treble', 4th grade finally getting just reward for a great season by taking out both the one-day and two-day competitions (and just missed out on their treble when they lost a weather affected T20 cup final) and 5th grade winning their 4th premiership in eight seasons. 1st grade made the semis of the Konica Cup and Douglas Cup competitions and 2nd grade were semi-finalist in the T20 and One-day competitions and were runners up in the Campbell Cup competition.

Apart from the personal milestones that are listed below, the following players achieved some special moments during the season:

- Maiden Centuries.
 - o I will start by acknowledging a very special maiden ton to a club stalwart and life member, Steve Cross, who finally achieved this in a great innings in a match against Tuggeranong at Chisholm #2. We batted first and with Steve opening the innings he was not only able to score his maiden hundred, he also 'carried his bat' finishing 128 no. Steve is a true veteran of the club having been involved for over 28 years and having played 394 matches.
- Other players who scored their maiden century for the club
 - Jono White (162no), Dave Horsfall (155), Khye Ditton (117), Jimmy
 Dimarhos (114), Lincoln Blissett (107), Jack Allen (106no) and Angus Jones (104no)
- Bowling

With the ball, players who took their first 5 wkts or more in an innings –

o Thomas Christou (6/32), Ryan Martin (5/15), William Graham (5/20), Ben Allen (5/29) and Hamish Starr (5/37)

I would also like to congratulate the following players for achieving personal milestones this season.

Matches		Runs		Wickets	
Darren Southwell	301	Stephen Cross	6674	Darren Southwell	535
John Fern	262	Graeme Alexander	5763	Graeme Alexander	511
Aaron Thorn	218	Dean Solway	5272	John Fern	402
Ian Hamill	205	Vele Dukoski	4674	Vele Dukoski	266
Dean Solway	200	Adrian Brunker	3972	Mark Solway	208
Michael Medved	167	Dom DiCampli	3881	Michael Stachow	182
Jeremy Macdonald	166	Phil Moore	3530		
Mark Solway	163	Michael Stachow	2735		
Josh Gregory	156	Jeremy Macdonald	2286		
Brad Moore	115	Dave Horsfall	2175		
Dave Horsfall	111	Michael Spaseski	2101		
Michael Spaseski	110	Mark Solway	2006		
Daniel Clugston	108	Matt Cutler	1656		
Khye Ditton	54	Micah Manners	1642		
Jono White	52	Michael Gilshenan	1532		
Josh Sands	51	Jono White	1259		
Adam Couch	50	Sid Girish	1130		
		Brad Falkenberg	1054		
		Brad Moore	1016		

This season was also a very busy season in regards to the hosting of representative matches.

The rep season started with the Australian Defence Force Carnival, who have made Queanbeyan their home away from home. Next up was the annual Over 60s Veterans Cricket Australia National Championships. During the course of the tournament we hosted 9 matches across our 3 grounds. This was then followed by hosting a number of matches for the Australian Womens Under 18s Championships.

We also got another taste of international cricket when a number of players from the Hong Kong national team came to Canberra for a training camp in January. We welcomed one of the team, Tanveer Ahmed into our ranks for a couple of matches.

During this time the club also hosted matches for a tri-series featuring Hong Kong, Comets and an All-Stars team from Melbourne.

Of course to be able to bring these matches to Queanbeyan would not be possible without the ongoing support of Tim Overall and all the staff at Queanbeyan Palerang Regional Council.



This season, I also got my hands dirty and joined the curating team, under the mentoring of head curator, Greg Dawes. Dawsey was great not only in his tutelage but also prepared to provide advice and assistance as required.

Dawsey again did the club proud in producing great cricket pitches week in and week out. This season the club also purchased a widearea mower, which Dawsey has become a dab hand at mowing the grass and keeping all 3 grounds looking like a picture.

Off Field

As usual I would like to thank our "Ladies Auxiliary", particularly Julie Solway and Ratsny Gillespie for the work they do around the club. I know that the 1st grade lads love the lunches they put together for every home game. I would also like to thank Cath Elliott and Faye Solway for looking after the pavilion by keeping things nice and clean. The ladies do a great job. Kath and Faye's involvement doesn't end there and they were great doing lunches and other jobs during our rep hosting responsibilities.

The Annual Dinner and Awards Presentation Night was again a great night and congratulations go to all the award recipients. I would like to thank Michael Frost for the fantastic job he did as Master of Ceremonies on the night.

I would also like to thank John Barilaro, Member of Monaro and Dr Mike Kelly Member for Eden-Monaro, who was accompanied by his lovely wife Shelley, for taking time out of their busy schedules to attend. John also had a very special reason for attending as he announce that

the club was successful in it application for funding to put towards an electronic scoreboard to be installed at Freebody Oval.

I would also like to thank Phil and Julie Moon for making the trip over from Cootamundra and I would also like to acknowledge the efforts of the organising committee of Rohan Ditton, Stephen Cross, Greg Dawes and Michael Frost. Thanks to all involved.

Winston and Sue McDonald were not able to attend this year, the first time they have missed a presentation night in many years.

The club's Annual Golf Day was another success with very good numbers. To this end I would like to thank on behalf of the committee Peter Solway, who is the driving force behind the day, Mark Solway and Chris Gane for the work they did in organising teams and last but no means least, the volunteers that made it such a good day – Greg Dawes, Derren Gillespie, Paul Morshead, Sam Frost and Jack Manners.

The Future

Each year I dust off the Crystal Ball and try and get an indication as to what the next 12 months will bring. Unfortunately it has been a bit cloudy, mainly due to the imminent changes coming out of Cricket ACT, so will just have to wait and see.

However there are things that the club has control over and one of the ones we are setting the standard is the development and mentoring of junior cricketers. Next season the committee intends to set the high standard we have achieved over the past decade or so, even higher.

As mentioned earlier, we were successful in obtaining a grant to assist with the purchase and installation of an electronic scoreboard. We are also looking at having a purpose built trophy cabinet installed in our clubrooms as well. We are also working with the council to bring Rockley Oval online and provide the club with another cricket ground with a turf pitch. This will definitely benefit both the seniors and juniors.

All in all, it's going to be a very busy season. Can't wait.

Committee M	eeting Attendar	nce Register	
Name	No Meetings	Attendance	Apology
Rohan Ditton	9	9	
Ron Bates	9	9	
Matt Harding	9	8	1
Adrian Brunker (Junior Rep)	9	7	2
Stephen Cross	9	8	1
Brad Falkenberg	9	3	4
Chris Gane	9	4	4
Derren Gillespie	9	6	3
David Horsfall	9	3	6
Stephen Moore	9	2	6
Michael Stachow	9	4	5
Mark Solway	9	4	4
Peter Solway	9	8	1
Darren Southwell	9	7	2

Ron Bates Honorary Secretary

Treasurer's Report

Club financial information, including the full Treasurer, is commercial in confidence.

However current club members can request a copy by contacting club secretary in writing.

Major Award Winners

Mark Higgs Medal



Vele Dukoski

McNamee and Partners President's Award



Darren Southwell

Greg Mann Memorial Trophy Player's Player



Michael Medved

Queanbeyan Kangaroos Football Club Club Champion Trophy



Michael Stachow

Malcolm Allen Memorial Trophy Clubperson of the Year



Peter Solway

Neil Bulger Trophy 1st Grade Batting Award



Michael Spaseski

John Solway Spirit of Cricket Award



Tom Christou & Brad Moore

Luke Bush Memorial Trophy Outstanding Junior



Jack Allen

Garry Samuels Trophy 1st Grade Bowling Award



Tyler Van Luin

Rod Winchester Shield 2nd Grade Batting Award



Jimmy Dimarhos

Graeme Alexander Shield 3rd Grade Bowling Award



Michael Stachow

James Martin Shield 5th Grade Batting Award



Dom DiCampli

Phil Moon Shield 2nd Grade Bowling Award



Darren Southwell

Stephen Cross Shield 4th Grade Batting Award



Michael O'Rourke

Ron McGlashan Shield 5th Grade Bowling Award



Daniel Clugston

Lloyd Buckley Shield 3rd Grade Batting Award



Peter Solway

Winston McDonald Shield 4th Grade Bowling Award



Tom Christou

Col Berry Shield Over 50s Player of the Year



Keith Bridgen

Individual Achievements

Batting

1st Grade:

Michael Spaseski 657 @ 36.5 Vele Dukoski 544 @ 34.00

2nd Grade:

James Dimarhos 421 @ 38.27 Phil Moore 265 @ 37.86

3rd Grade:

Michael Stachow 718 @ 47.87 Peter Solway 624 @ 62.40

4th Grade:

Michael O'Rourke 353 @ 88.28 Adrian Brunker 543 @ 49.36

5th Grade:

Dom DiCampli 528 @ 66.0 Jono White 669 @ 55.75

Greybaggers:

Les Harris 200 @ 50.00

Bowling

1st Grade:

Tyler Van Luin 31 @ 20.55 Michael Spaseski 32 @ 20.75

2nd Grade:

Darren Southwell 56 @ 13.70 Oliver Cheatle 33 @ 16.61

3rd Grade:

Michael Stachow 33 @ 10.70 Mitton Alexander 17 @ 11.65

4th Grade:

Tom Christou 25 @ 8.52 Will Graham 31 @ 15.71

5th Grade:

Daniel Clugston 24 @ 11.46 John Fern 20 @ 9.95

Greybaggers:

Jim Martin 10 @ 24.10

Outstanding Achievements

Centurions:

Jono White – 162no Dave Horsfall – 155

Vele Dukoski – 135, 100no

Steve Cross – 128no

Michael Spaseski – 125

Khye Ditton – 117

Michael O'Rourke - 116no, 106

Dean Solway - 116

Peter Solway - 115no, 103no, 102no

Jimmy Dimarhos – 114

Jeremy Macdonald – 111

Michael Stachow – 110

Lincoln Blissett – 107

Jack Allen – 106no

Adrian Brunker – 105no

Angus Jones – 104no

5 wkts Innings:

Michael Stachow – 6/18

Thomas Christou -6/32, 5/11

Jack Allen – 6/46

Ryan Martin -5/15

Daniel Clugston – 5/16

Darren Southwell -5/18, 5/40

William Graham – 5/20

Ben Allen -5/29

Hamish Starr – 5/37

Vele Dukoski – 5/56

The Nervous 90's

Rizwan Momin – 95

Sam Frost – 94

Vinesh Bennett - 93

2017-2018 Club Performances

Top 10 Batting Performances

(across all grades and ranked on total runs)

	Player	Mat	Inn	NO	Runs	HS	Ave	50's	100's
1	Michael Stachow	22	21	5	776	110	48.50	7	1
2	Jonathan White	18	17	5	669	162*	55.75	3	1
3	Michael Spaseski	18	19	1	657	125	36.50	2	1
4	Peter Solway	22	14	4	624	115*	62.40	2	3
5	Dom Di-Campli	18	16	7	589	82	65.44	3	0
6	Vele Dukoski	18	19	1	569	135	31.61	1	2
7	Lincoln Blissett	22	18	3	562	107	37.47	3	1
8	David Horsfall	19	17	2	557	155	37.13	2	1
9	Adrian Brunker	18	16	3	557	105*	42.85	2	1
10	Dean Solway	18	18	2	544	116	34.00	2	1

Top 10 Bowling Performances

(across all grades and ranked on total wickets)

	Player	Mat	0	M	W	R	Ave	B/B	5Wi	10Wm
1	Darren Southwell	21	280	89	56	767	13.70	5/18	2	0
2	Michael Stachow	22	168.5	42	35	412	11.77	6/18	1	0
3	Thomas Christou	17	140.5	31	34	369	10.85	6/32	2	0
4	Tristan Klower	21	151	30	34	491	14.44	4/17	0	0
5	Oliver Cheatle	19	168.2	26	33	576	17.45	3/15	0	0
6	James Martin	26	144.4	24	32	513	16.03	4/15	0	0
7	Michael Spaseski	18	167.4	24	32	664	20.75	4/33	0	0
8	William Graham	21	209.4	54	31	512	16.52	5/20	1	0
9	Luin Tyler Van	18	178.1	37	31	637	20.55	4/37	0	0
10	Micah Manners	21	130	28	28	356	12.71	4/19	0	0

Top 10 All-Round Performances

(across all grades and ranked on runs & wickets & fielding)

	Player	Runs	HS	Ave	Wkts	Ave	B/B	Fielding
1	Michael Stachow	776	110	48.50	35	11.77	6/18	11
2	Michael Spaseski	657	125	36.50	32	20.75	4/33	5
3	Vele Dukoski	569	135	31.61	36	27.19	5/56	6
4	Khye Ditton	471	117	39.25	27	11.37	4/31	3
5	Micah Manners	321	45*	20.06	28	12.71	4/19	10
6	Mark Solway	313	63*	19.56	22	32.00	4/52	10
7	Tyler Van Luin	205	56	29.29	31	16.52	4/37	4
8	Peter Jensen	209	59*	23.22	26	15.88	3/15	0
9	Abhinash Kumar	285	49	19.00	17	19.94	3/40	3
10	Graeme Alexander	272	51	20.92	15	17.40	3/10	7

Keeping and Fielding Records

(all grades)

	Player	Mat	Catches	Catches	Stumpings	Run	Total
			(fielder)	(WK)		Outs	
1	Michael Medved	18	0	30	3	0	33
2	Brad Moore	19	1	28	4	0	33
3	Chris Gane	17	15	0	0	1	16
4	Aaron Thorn	20	1	10	3	2	16
5	Blake McCarten	11	0	14	1	0	15
6	Jeremy Macdonald	18	13	0	0	1	14
7	Adrian Brunker	18	11	1	0	1	13
8	Jack Manners	19	1	8	4	0	13
9	Jonathan White	18	4	3	1	5	13
10	Matthew Harding	15	8	1	0	3	12

Representative Honours & Special Awards

ACT Comets (Futures League & Colts):	Michael Spaseski, Dean Solway, Mark Solway, Tyler Van Luin, Hamish Starr
ACT Rockets (Open & Masters)	Tyler Van Luin, Vinesh Bennett, Ian Hamill
Australian Indoor Team (2017 World Cup):	Vinesh Bennett
Australia Over 50s:	Peter Solway
ACT Over 60s – Veterans Cricket National Championships:	Jim Martin, Ron Bates, Col Berry
ACT Over 50s – Veterans Cricket National Championships:	Michael Frost, Peter Solway, Keith Bridgen
ACT Team of the Year:	Michael Spaseski
ACT Emerging Comets and Schools Representatives:	Abhinash Kumar, Angus Jones, Jack Allen, Jack Manners, Duane Bush, Samuel Frost, Tom Phelps, Oliver Fox, Brad Millynn, Harry O'Rouke, Felix Bennett, Braiden McCarten, Blake McCarten, Tristan Klower, Dane Klower, Josh Fahey
Lorne Lees Medal: (2nd grade Player of the Year)	Darren Southwell
Keith Carnall Medal: (3rd grade Player of the Year)	Michael Stachow
Dene Moore Medal: (4th grade Player of the Year)	Khye Ditton
2nd grade Bowling Award:	Darren Southwell
4th grade Batting Award:	Adrian Brunker

Player Milestones

Matches

400

Michael Frost (562)		Graeme Alexander (445)
` ,	300	,
Stephen Cross (394)	Stephen Frost (384)	James Martin (381)
Peter Solway (376)	Ron McGlashan (327)	Darren Southwell (301)
• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	200	,
Simon Fahey (274)	John Fern (262)	Peter Coleborne (254)
Jack McNamara (243)	Peter Jensen (243)	Adrian Brunker (241)
Colin Crouch (240)	Michael Carruthers (239)	Vele Dukoski (234)
John Bull (230)	Mark Lynch (230)	Neil Bulger (221)
Ray Hatch (219)	Rohan Ditton (219)	Aaron Thorn (218)
Rodney Winchester (211)	Mark Higgs (211)	Ian Hamill (205)
Dean Solway (200)		()
	150	
Phillip Moore (196)	Adam Heading (195)	Dom DiCampli (193)
Dean Southwell (192)	Col Berry (191)	Dean Mansfield (191)
Wayne Campbell (189)	Geoff McMurray (188)	Geoff Woods (182)
Michael Stachow (182)	Andrew Bull (178)	Robert Regent (175)
John Regent (174)	Brendan MacNamara (174)	Chris Doyle (172)
Peter Newham (171)	Steve Bailey (169)	Graham Hannaford (169)
Michael Medved (167)	Jeremy Macdonald (166)	Daniel Quinn (166)
Dave Corcoran (165)	Dean Moore (164)	Damien Tongs (164)
Ben Stensrud (164)	Mark Solway (163)	Anthony Wynd (162)
Scott Bannerman (160)	Raglan Maddox (156)	Josh Gregory (156)
Vince Bulger (154)	Christopher Howe (154)	David Bourke (151)
Alan Hodgson (151)	Simon Mann (151)	
	100	
Ian Black (146)	Michael Nairn (145)	Robert Farquharson (144)
Ryan Collier (143)	Terry Freebody (142)	William Carters (142)
Matt Jackson (142)	Marty Frost (142)	Victor Forbes (139)
Geoff McMahon (138)	Mick Kelly (138)	Les Coffey (137)
Lloyd Buckley (133)	Rick Dibitonto (132)	A Clark (132)
Troy Drayton (132)	Keith Norton (131)	Matt Harding (131)
Nathan Reid (130)	Chris Hamill (130)	Robert Warren (128)
Phil Higgs (127)	John Kelly (127)	Greg Dawes (125)
Paul Wylks (125)	Paul Kowal (123)	Alex Page (121)
Adam Wade (119)	Alan Bailey (119)	Colin Imrie (116)
Dave Hughes (115)	Brad Moore (115)	Chris Henry (114)
Simon Johnson (114)	John Duros (113)	David Wenning (113)
Les Manwaring (112)	Jono Dean (112)	David Horsfall (111)
Tony Bray (110)	Michael Sargent (110)	Guy Gillespie (110)
Michael Spaseski (110)	Geoff Hague (109)	Simon McLoughlin (108)
Fred Wilton (108)	Nick Harvey (108)	Daniel Clugston (108)
Jeremy Bannerman (107)	Laks Shivakumar (107)	Robby Davis (106)
Ben Forbes (106)	Lea Hansen (105)	Sam Taylor (104)
Ray Heading (103)	Chris Hart (102)	Dave Sargent (102)
Warren Forbes (100)	Steve Hamill (100)	2 \ /
()	(/	

Runs

10,000

	10,000	
Michael Frost (12938)		Peter Solway (11292)
	8,000	
	Stephen Frost (8930)	
	7,000	
Neil Bulger (7911)		Peter Coleborne (7037)
	6,000	
Stephen Cross (6674)	,	Mark Higgs (6388)
	5,000	
John Bull (5993)	Simon Fahey (5964)	Peter Jensen (5866)
Graeme Alexander (5763)	James Martin (5287)	Dean Solway (5272)
, ,	4,000	• ` '
Rod Winchester (4843)	Jono Dean (4828)	Terry Freebody (4799)
Adam Heading (4694)	Vele Dukoski (4674)	Rohan Ditton (4398)
G , , ,	Michael Carruthers (4087)	
	3,000	
Rob Regent (3979)	Adrian Brunker (3972)	Dom DiCampli (3881)
Phillip Moore (3530)	Dean Mansfield (3475)	David Corcoran (3434)
Clarrie Hincksman (3286)	John Fern (3231)	Jack McNamara (3210)
Ian Hamill (3204)	Frank Nash (3190)	Graham Hannaford (3088)
	2,500	
A Clarke (2927)	Wayne Campbell (2900)	Aaron Thorn (2747)
Michael Stachow (2735)	Vince Bulger (2703)	Geoff Woods (2667)
Ben Stensrud (2657)	Ron McGlashan (2654)	Jason Swift (2635)
Peter Newham (2620)	Stephen Bailey (2570)	Keith Norton (2553)
Aaron Ayre (2547)	Ray Hatch (2538)	Simon Mann (2524)
	Raglan Maddox (2509)	
	2,000	
Josh Gregory (2487)	Ray Heading (2415)	Andrew Bull (2349)
Laks Shivakumar (2340)	Daniel Quinn (2334)	Les Manwaring (2325)
Greg Dawes (2310)	Jeremy Macdonald (2286)	Matt Harding (2270)
Tony Wynd (2266)	Geoff McMurray (2262)	Ian Black (2236)
Neville Croker (2224)	Dave Horsfall (2175)	John Regent (2151)
Michael Spaseski (2101)	David Bourke (2086)	Mark Solway (2006)
	Clarrie Gribble (2002)	
D1.1 D (1005)	1,500	15 1 777 1 (1000)
Blake Dean (1937)	Marty Frost (1846)	Mal Wheeler (1808)
Ian Armour (1765)	Matt Cutler (1656)	Micah Manners (1642)
Tom O'Connor (1586)	Michael Gilshenan (1532)	
	1,000	
M-44 C 44 (1051)	(current players only)	I Whit (1050)
Matt Grocott (1351)	James Dimarhos (1309)	Jono White (1259)
Michael Medved (1251)	Alex Page (1237)	Wil Morshead (1209)
Darren Southwell (1190)	Sid Girish (1130)	Brad Falkenberg (1054)
	Brad Moore (1016)	

Wickets

600

James Martin (634)

	varies martin (es i)	
Darren Southwell (535)	500 Mark Lynch (526)	Graeme Alexander (511)
	400	
Ron McGlashan (498)	Frank Nash (416)	John Bull (401)
John Fern (402)	Mark Higgs (400)	
	300	
Colin Crouch (387)	Neil Bulger (384)	Tom O'Connor (366)
Peter Jensen (332)	Alan Hodgson (329)	Dean Southwell (312)
, ,	Scott Bannerman (311)	` ,
	200	
Stephen Frost (275)	Vele Dukoski (266)	Winston McDonald (243)
Troy Drayton (233)	Peter Newham (223)	Dean White (219)
Phil Moon (219)	Vince Bulger (218)	Simon Fahey (217)
Will Rogers (211)	Mark Solway (208)	Simon Mann (203)
	150	
Adam Heading (190)	Michael Stachow (182)	Ian Black (176)
Lea Hansen (169)	Alex Page (160)	Clarrie Gribble (154)
	5 , ,	
	100	
361 15 (44)	(current players only)	D. 1. Div. (104)
Michael Frost (144)	Guy Gillespie (137)	Rohan Ditton (134)
Paul Wylks (128)	Simon Johnson (114) Matt Grocott (107)	Jay Ludwig (111)
	ivian Orocon (107)	

Premiership Scorecards

3rd Grade – Twenty/20 Cup Final

Queanbeyan vs Tuggeranong

Venue: Manuka Oval Date: 22 October 2017

Toss: Queanbeyan

Umpires: N Ewbank & S Lekamarachchi

Queambeya	11
Batsman	

Batsman	How Out	Runs
M Cutler	Lemin b Cadden	24
K Evans	b Nemes	2
P Solway (c)	c Pappas b Cadden	10
M Stachow	c Hays b Lemin	0
D Horsfall	c Lemin b Cadden	0
B Moore (w)	c Rogers b Randell	1
A Jones	c Burge b Lemin	0
B McCarten	run out (Hays)	33
L Blissett	c Randell b Rizvi	36
A Mitton	not out	1
B Allen	run out (Evans)	1
T Klower	dnb	
Sundries: (0b, 1lb, 0nb, 3w)		4
Total: (20 overs)	112

FOW: 23 (Evans) 36 (Cutler) 38 (Solway) 38 (Horsfall) 38 (Stachow) 38 (Jones) 40 (Moore) 103 (McCarten) 111 (Blissett) 112 (Allen)

Bowling

B Cadden 4-1-3-10, P Nemes 2-0-1-27, G Lemin 4-1-2-11, G Randell 4-0-1-19,

S Rizvi 4-0-1-28, T Rogers 2-0-0-16

Tuggeranong

Batsman	How Out	Runs
S Rizvi	b Stachow	0
D Bickerton	b Allen	15
J Pappas	c Evans b Stachow	2
J Evans	run out (Cutler)	1
S Burge (w)	c Klower b Blissett	14
G Randell	run out (Jones)	1
G Lemin	not out	33
A Pezzullo	c Stachow b Blissett	4
R Hays	run out (Allen)	6
T Rogers	run out (Evans)	5
P Nemes (c)	not out	2
B Cadden	dnb	
Sundries: (0b, 5lb, 0nb, 7w)		12

Total: (20 overs) 9 wkts for 105

FOW: 0 (Rizvi) 6 (Pappas) 11 (Evans) 32 (Burge) 34 (Bickerton) 70 (Randell) 81 (Pezzullo) 98 (Hays) 102 (Rogers)

Bowling

M Stachow 4-0-2-18, A Mitton 4-0-0-15, T Klower 1-0-0-6, L Blissett 4-0-2-23,

B Allen 4-0-1-17, K Evans 3-0-0-21

Match Result: Queanbeyan won by 7 runs. Player of the Match: L Blissett

3rd Grade - One-day Cup Final

Queanbeyan vs ANU

Venue: Freebody Oval Date: 17 December 2017

Toss: Queanbeyan Umpires: D Stewart & A Miller

Queanbeyan

Batsman	How Out	Runs
D Horsfall (w)	c Wallace b Bohara	36
LM Blissett	c Bohara b Schaefer	10
C Edgar	c Brandling b Schaefer	0
M Stachow	b Santinon	19
B McCarten	lbw Brandling	6
*P Solway	c & b Stewart	45
SJ Frost	run out (Wallace)	25
V Bennett	c & b Devanathan	13
B Allen	not out	17
J Allen	not out	6
A Mitton	dnb	
T Klower	dnb	
Sundriege (Ob	2lb 1nb 2m)	7

Sundries: (0b, 3lb, 1nb, 3w) 7
Total: (45 overs) 8 wickets for 184

FOW: 22 (Blissett) 26 (Edgar) 54 (Horsfall) 61 (McCarten) 82 (Stachow) 127 (Frost)

151 (Bennett) 166 (Solway)

Bowling

U Devliyal 6-0-0-20, M Schaefer 6-0-2-28, J Stewart 7-2-1-27, A Bohara 5-1-1-15, J Brandling 6-1-1-28, L Santinon 9-0-1-32, A Devanathan 6-0-1-31

ANU

Batsman	How Out	Runs
B Peterson	c Solway b Stachow	7
S Sorbello	run out (Horsfall)	4
C Peiris	c & b Stachow	4
M Schaefer	b Stachow	2
M Begg (w)	c Klower b Stachow	7
D Wallace (c)	c Mitton b Allen	10
L Santinon	b Mitton	0
A Bohara	c Bennett b Stachow	0
J Stewart	b Stachow	8
U Devliyal	c Blissett b Allen	2
A Devanathan	not out	0
J Brandling	dnb	
Sundries: (2b, 3lb, 0nb, 7w)		12
Total: (20.1 ove	ers)	56

FOW: 9 (Peterson) 13 (Sorbello) 16 (Schaefer) 27 (Begg) 32 (Peiris) 33 (Santinon) 36 (Bohara) 46 (Stewart) 52 (Wallace) 56 (Devliyal)

Bowling

M Stachow 8-1-6-18, C Edgar 4-0-0-14, A Mitton 3-0-1-11, T Klower 3-0-0-7, J Allen 2.1-1-2-1

Match Result: Queanbeyan won by 128 runs

Player of the Match: M Stachow

3rd Grade – FG Sides Memorial Trophy Final

Queanbeyan vs ANU

Venue: Neil Bulger Oval Date: 17 & 18 March 2018

Toss: ANU

Umpires: L Keyakkumar & A Barrett

	C 111p11 USV == 11UJ V	
ANU		
Batsman	How Out	Runs
B Smart	c Moore b Mitton	8
W Woodrow	c Moore b Mitton	3
M Ireland	c Mitton b Brown	16
K Pawar	c Moore b Edgar	21
*D Wallace	b Mitton	14
J Savage	lbw Bennett	12
+C Warren	c Moore b Mitton	35
S Young	b Bennett	1
L Luchetti	lbw Stachow	28
A Bohara	c Brown b Bennett	2
J Brandling	not out	1
M Willington	dnb	
Sundries (0b, 4lb, 6nb, 1w)		11
Total: (77.2 ove	ers)	152

FOW: 7 (Woodrow) 18 (Smart) 47 (Pawar) 66 (Ireland) 66 (Wallace) 89 (Savage) 95 (Young) 138 (Warren) 148 (Luchetti) 152 (Bohara)

Bowling

L Blissett 8-1-0-19, A Mitton 19-5-4-34, C Edgar 14-2-1-42, V Bennett 15.2-7-3-16, J Brown 7-3-1-13, M Stachow 10-5-1-12, T Phelps 4-1-0-12

Queanbeyan

Batsman	How Out	Runs
D Horsfall	b Willington	3
L Blissett	b Brandling	0
S Frost	lbw Brandling	0
M Stachow	c Warren b Willington	3
T Phelps	lbw Willington	21
P Solway (c)	c Wallace b Pawar	16
C Edgar	c Woodrow b Willington	32
V Bennett	c Savage b Willington	10
B Moore (w)	not out	32
A Mitton	run out (Luchetti)	27
O Fox	not out	0
J Brown	dnb	
Extras (1b, 3lb,	, 3nb, 2w)	9

FOW: 5 (Horsfall) 5 (Blissett) 6 (Frost) 12 (Stachow) 40 (Solway) 82 (Edgar) 92 (Phelps) 95 (Bennett) 141 (Mitton)

9 wickets for 153

Bowling

Total: (72 overs)

J Brandling 15-4-2-28, M Willington 15-5-5-24, K Pawar 16-4-1-38, S Young 14-4-0-26, A Bohara 7-0-0-24, L Luchetti 5-0-0-9

Match Result: Queanbeyan won by 1 wicket

Player of the Match: A Mitton

4th Grade - One-day Cup Final

Queanbeyan vs ANU

Date: 17 December 2017 **Venue: Neil Bulger Oval**

Toss: ANU

Umpires: R Brigden & G Rees

ANU		
Batsman	How Out	Runs
B Smart	c Brunker b Couch	0
I Singh	b Jensen	3
G Badcock	lbw Jensen	13
C Warren (w)	c Bush b Manners	48
B Hay (c)	c & b Ditton	55
S Young	not out	34
D Thomson	lbw Couch	16
L Luchetti	not out	3
T Power	dnb	
CL Emery	dnb	
D Bowditch-Wh	arton dnb	
J Rossendell	dnb	
Extras (1b, 9lb,	1nb, 14w)	25
Total: (45 overs	6 wickets for	197

FOW: 3 (Smart) 5 (Singh) 39 (Badcock) 114 (Warren) 154 (Hay) 194 (Thomson)

Bowling

A Couch 9-0-2-49, P Jensen 9-0-2-38, T Christou 5-0-0-28, K Ditton 9-1-1-22,

M Manners 9-1-1-30, W Graham 4-0-0-20

Queanbeyan

Batsman	How Out	Runs
D Bush	c Singh b Emery	9
M Harding	lbw Rossendell	4
R Ditton	b Emery	6
K Ditton	b S Young	88
A Brunker (c)	st Warren b Luchetti	28
M Manners	st Warren b Young	28
T Christou	b Young	0
S Cross	run out	3
P Jensen	not out	5
J Manners (w)	b Luchetti	1
A Couch	not out	1
W Graham	dnb	
Sundries (6b. 2	25	

Sundries (6b, 2lb, 2nb, 15w) 9 wickets for 198 Total: (45 overs)

FOW: 6 (Harding) 25 (Ditton) 29 (Bush) 106 (Brunker) 185 (Manners) 185 (Christou)

191 (Cross) 191 (Ditton) 192 (Manners)

Bowling

J Rossendell 7-0-1-28, T Power 7-0-0-28, C Emery 6-1-2-22, D Bowditch-Wharton 2-0-0-22, S Young 9-0-3-31, L Luchetti 8-1-2-30, D Thomson 5-0-0-25, I Singh 1-0-0-4

Match Result: Queanbeyan won by 1 wicket

Player of the Match: K Ditton

4th Grade - Ainslie CC Cup (Two-day) Final

Queanbeyan vs ANU

Venue: ANU North Date: 17 & 18 March 2018

Toss: ANU

Umpires: A Miller, D Martin

ANU					
Batsman	How Out	Runs			
T Shiell	c Brunker b Christou	16			
A Devanathan	c Cross b Christou	2			
S Sorbello	c M O'Rourke b Christou	38			
G Badcock (c)	lbw Manners	29			
J Day	b W Graham	1			
D Carroll	c McCarten b Ditton	19			
L Pedley	b Christou	7			
D Thomson	not out	40			
+J Dunstall	b Christou	0			
T Power	lbw Christou	0			
C Emery	c Cross b Ditton	15			
D Bowditch-Wharton dnb					
Extras (1b, 6lb, 1nb, 0w)					
Total: (94 overs)					

FOW: 6 (Devanathan) 52 (Shiell) 61 (Sorbello) 62 (Day) 101 (Carroll) 117 (Badcock) 119 (Pedley) 119 (Dunstall) 119 (Power) 175 (Emery)

Bowling

K Ditton 19-7-2-30, T Christou 20-7-6-32, M Manners 13-5-1-23, W Graham 23-9-1-44, H O'Rourke 7-1-0-16, P Jensen 7-1-0-17, M O'Rourke 5-4-0-6

Queanbeyan

Batsman	How Out	Runs
M O'Rourke	c Power b Bowditch-What	rton58
S Cross	lbw Thomson	14
D Bush	c Shiell b Thomson	0
B McCarten (w)	lbw Bowditch-Wharton	3
K Ditton	c Badcock b Devanathan	23
A Brunker (c)	not out	52
M Manners	lbw Devanathan	0
MR Harding	not out	18
P Jensen	dnb	
H O'Rourke	dnb	
W Graham	dnb	
T Christou	dnb	
Sundring (5h 1l	h 1nh 2w)	0

Sundries (5b, 1lb, 1nb, 2w) 9 Total: (57.5 overs) 6 wickets for 177

FOW: 46 (Cross) 46 (Bush) 82 (M O'Rourke) 91 (McCarten) 136 (Ditton) 140 (Manners)

Bowling

C Emery 10-2-0-30, D Bowditch-Wharton 15.5-4-2-50, D Thomson 13-3-2-34,

T Power 9-3-0-26, A Devanathan 10-3-2-31

Match Result: Queanbeyan won by 4 wickets

Player of the Match: T Christou

First Grade Report

(Konica Cup Semi-finalist, Douglas Cup Semi-finalist)

The season began on a high note with the club welcoming back Michael Spaseski who was appointed 1st grade captain.

To start the season was the Konica T20 Cup. In the first two matches we easily accounted for Eastlake and the Tuggeranong, but came up against Weston Creek in the 3rd and went down by 20 runs. In the semi, we were up against Wests at Jamison. Batting first we put together a competitive score of 6/139. Wests in reply just managed to chase down the score.

After our performances in the Konica, the team was in a very positive mindset for the John Gallop Cup (One-day Cup competition). However it began with a narrow loss to Wests and then ANU giving us a cricketing lesson at home. We then had back to back wins over Ginninderra and Eastlake but we could not get any consistency. Our next match was against Tuggeranong and we let too many chances go by and they were able to get the points. We bounced back against Norths, but a wash out against Weston Creek meant we just missed out on the semis.

The Douglas Cup (Two-day Competition) started on a great note. Taking on Wests in the first match, both Vele and Dean 'tonned' up with good support from Mark and Stuey enabled us to post 7 dec 377 (88 overs), however day 2 was washed out and we had to share the points. In the second match we took on ANU. After being sent into bat we complied 336 (89 overs) with Guy top scoring with 83, ably supported by Brad (82) and Matt (59), we then bowled them out for 220.

The New Year started with a good win over Ginninderra, however the wheels fell off when we took on Eastlake at Kingston. Batting first on a bit of green top we were skittled for 116. At one stage we were 7/25 and only Tyler (39) and Guy (44) were able put together a good partnership to avoid complete humiliation. We fought hard and had them 6 wickets down when they passed us.

Our next match was against Tuggeranong at Chisholm. Bowling first, our bowlers were on top early, having them 5/69, but again missed chances enabled them to post 263 in their 1st innings. Our chase got off to a steady start but at 6/149 thinks did not look good. However a century plus stand between Mark (63no) and Jimmy D (49no) got us home.

In the next match we travelled over to Harrison to take on Norths in what was an incredible match. Norths won the toss and we bowled them out for 198 with Jack Allen bagging his first, 1st grade 5 wicket haul (his final figures 6/46 off 16.2 overs). In reply we got close but were bowled out 8 runs shy of a 1st innings lead. Batting a second time Northies went for it and made a bold declaration with the score on 7/195 (56 overs). Needing 202 runs from just 20 overs, Vele and Spags opened the innings and bludgeoned their bowlers all over the ground and we chased down the target with two overs in hand. Vele finished with 100 no (49 balls) and Spags made 95 (54 balls).

In our final round match, we came up against Weston Creek at home. A win here would see us finish as minor premiers and more importantly a home semi-final. Winning the toss and batting, Creek made 225 thanks mainly to ex-bluebag Jono Dean (119). It was a score we were not disappointed with. Despite losing an early wicket towards the end of day 1, we were comfortable where we were in the match. On day two we just could not put any decent

partnerships together and at 7/125 it didn't look good. However holding the tail together, Vele did a great job in farming the strike and constantly put pressure on Creek fielders as we edged closer to the target. Unfortunately none of our lower order batsmen could support him long enough and we ended up being bowled out for 193.

The following week, we took on Creek at Stirling in a match that set too many records but none of them in our favour.

As you look through the averages, you will see that our bowlers did a great job with 4 taking 20 wickets or more. However we were not well served in the batting department. Only 3 players scored more than 500 runs. Something that will need to be worked on during the off season.

Thoughts now turn to next season with a talented crop of youngsters all looking to either break into 1st grade or to cement their position in the team.

BATTING AVERAGES

(minimum 150 runs)

Name	Mat	Inns	N.O's	Runs	HS	Ave
Michael Spaseski	18	19	1	657	125	36.50
Vele Dukoski	18	19	1	569	135	31.61
Dean Solway	18	18	2	544	116	34.00
Mark Solway	18	18	2	313	63*	19.56
Bradley Falkenberg	11	11	2	277	82	30.78
Chris Gane	11	11	0	209	37	19.00
Luin Tyler Van	18	12	5	205	56	29.29
Stuart Bridgen	12	11	1	173	39	17.30

BOWLING AVERAGES

(minimum 15 wickets)

Name	Overs	Mdns	Wkts	Runs	Ave	B/B
Michael Spaseski	167.4	24	32	664	20.75	4/33
Luin Tyler Van	178.1	37	31	637	20.55	4/37
Vele Dukoski	197.3	31	26	707	27.19	5/56
Mark Solway	174	17	22	704	32.00	4/52

Second Grade Report

(T20 semi-finalists, Two-day Runners Up)



Back Row: P Moore, D Southwell, B McCarten, C Gane (capt), J Macdonald, S Girish Middle Row: H Starr, T Klower, J Dimarhos, A Kumar Front Row: O Cheatle, M Cutler (Also pictured – V Dukoski)

Another season of what could have been.

After careful consideration of the candidates, the committee appointed Josh Gregory as captain.

First cab off the rank was the T20 competition. In the first match we took on Eastlake and despite the effort of Jimmy (42) and Brad (37) we fell 6 runs short. However we turned things around in the next match by thumping Tuggeranong by 80 runs with Brad showing the way with 85 from 42 balls. Needing to win our final pool match we took on Monaro and blew them of the park, skittling them for 59 (Southie 3/8) and then chasing the runs down in just 6 overs, again Brad was on fire with 44 from 20 balls. In the semi, chasing 131 we had 5 batsmen get into double figures but apart from Jimmy (31 from 42) no one went on with it and we lost by 15 runs.

The one-day competition started the following week and we took revenge on Wests by beating them by 50 runs. However our round 2 clash with ANU was a match to forget as we were bowled out for 118 (32 overs) and ANU comfortably passed our score. It didn't get any better the following week when we hosted Ginninderra. Batting first, Ginninderra took full toll of our wayward attack to post 7/214. In reply our efforts with the bat were as poor as our efforts with the ball and we were bowled out for 114. Needing a win to get back in finals contention, we took on Eastlake at Kingston. Eastlake batted first and again our bowling was not great and they posted 5/242.

However Kingston was a really flat track and our batsmen went out full of confidence. The top order fired with Josh 67, Fahzey 60, Matt 52, but a bit of a collapse saw us go from 1/184 to 4/186. But with plenty of overs in hand, Jezza and Jimmy steadied the ship and we eventually passed them in the 40th over.

We were now just outside the top 4 as we travelled to Chisholm to take on Tuggeranong. However the deeds of the previous week were quickly washed away as we tumbled to be bowled out for 126, which Tuggeranong had little trouble passing. Our round 6 clash took us too Harrison to take on Northies. Josh won the toss and put Northies in a decision that paid handsomely as we bowled them out for 104 with our inspirational opening bowler, Darren Southwell doing all the damage in taking 5/18. In reply we were able to pick up 2 bonus points by chasing the runs down in 15 overs (1/110) with Jezza hitting a '6' to win the match.

The last round and we were at home to Weston Creek. We now needed to win and for Ginninderra to lose to make the semis. Little did we know at the time that Ginninderra match against Tuggeranong was washed out. We won the toss and put Creek into bat. This time young Ben Allen did the job taking 5/29 as we bowled them out for 107. All thoughts were to try and get the runs inside 25 overs for 2 bonus points, however losing 2 early wicket slowed the run rate down. But we passed their score 5 wickets down in just under 26 overs for that valuable bonus point.

In the semi-final, ANU won the toss and batted. Our bowlers stuck to their task and we bowled them out for 198 well inside 50 overs. Our chase got off to a bad start losing an early wicket. From there on wickets fell at a regular interval with only Jimmy (47) showing any resolute and we were bowled us out for 140.

The Campbell Cup (two day competition) began with us travelling to Jamison to take on Wests. Batting first, Wests compiled 220 thanks to a number of missed chances. Our chase got off to a bad start with the loss of two early wickets. By the time stumps were called, we were 5/79. Fortunately week two was washed out. Our round 2 match against ANU was played on a pretty great batting strip at Freebody. We won the toss and scored 9 dec 295, with Jimmy top scoring with 73 with good support from Tom (45), Abhinash (37) and Jay (35). In reply ANU took full toll of any poor deliveries and missed chances to bat out day 2, 7/274 to force a draw.

Round 3 saw us travel to Kippax to take on Ginninderra. Ginners won the toss and batted on a very flat track. However our bowler hung in there and held them to 250. Our chase again began badly, losing 2 early wickets, but Jimmy got his just rewards by compiling his first century for the club (114). Phil hit form with 76 no and we passed them 6 wicket down with only 10 balls left in the days play. However at the end of the match Josh's stood down as captain as work opportunities would limit any further matches he could play for the club.

Round 4 and with Southie at the helm we were back at Freebody taking on Eastlake. Batting first we were bowled out for 166, with nearly all batsmen contributing to their own dismissal. Eastlake's chase got off to a steady start, however our bowlers were keeping things tight and made Eastlake earn every run. Each time they started to put a partnership together we were able to break it. But at 5/103 it was anyone's game to win. Things were really tense and with 1 wicket in hand there tailenders had put together a 30 run partnership before Hamish clean bowled their #11 and we had a 12 run win.

Round 5 and the team was bolstered by the appointing of Chris Gane as captain as we hosted Tuggeranong. Batting first, our batting let us down and we were bowled out for 113 from 55

overs. In reply we bowled Tuggeranong out for 170. Asked to bat a second time, we batted out the remaining time and finished 6/161 with Gansey top scoring with 46. In the penultimate round, we were again at home to Northies. Norths won the toss and batted and we rolled them for 144 with TK taking 4/17. In reply we made 4 dec 215 with Braiden top scoring with 67 supported by Sid (38), Cam (35no) and Jezza (26 no). In the 2nd innings, Northies made us fight for every wicket but we bowled them out for 120. With only 8 overs left in the day, we threw caution to the wind as Matt (45 no from 25 balls) got us the outright win with 4 balls to spare.

In the final round, we headed over to Stirling to take on Creek. Winning the toss we had no hesitation in batting first and apart from an early wicket, we hit their bowlers all over the park and we scored 373 (75 overs) with Jezza 111, Gansey 62 and Mitto 42. Stumps on day one and they had moved to 2/26. Day two started well with Southie and Mitto getting amongst the wickets and we bowled them out for 83 for just under 30 overs. Enforcing the follow on, only their lower order kept us in the field but Southie did most of the damage taking 4/25 and we bowled them out for 126 for back to back outright wins. At one stage we were in top spot, but wins to Tuggeranong and Eastlake relegated us back to 3rd spot.

The unavailability of Kingston, saw the semi-final played at Freebody. Eastlake won the toss and batted but it made no difference as our bowlers and we bowled them out for 131 but tea on the first day. By stumps we had moved to 3/68 with Sid anchoring the innings. Day 2 and we were bowled out for 203, a handy 72 run lead. Eastlake were not going to go down without a fight and batted again. While they were chasing quick runs, they were also loosing wickets and we bowled them out for 80. Rather than conceding the Demons asked us to bat and we knocked off the 8 runs to win.

As ANU knocked off Tuggeranong in their semi-final, 2nd grade had the home ground advantage for the Grand Final. However this mattered little as after winning the toss and the ANU bowlers showed no mercy (plus a few poor shots) and we were bowled out for 109. We made early inroads to their batting and at 5/105 we were still in the match, however former Comet, Randall Starr took the match away from us scoring 178 out of a total of 279. Again chances went begging as he was dropped very early on. Batting a 2nd time we lost early wickets but our middle order kept the scoreboard ticking over. But it was not enough and were bowled out for 215. Gansey had a captains knock, top scored with 43, Phil made 42 with Jezza and Southie both getting 20s. The never say die attitude of the team insisted that ANU earn the victory and they headed out to bat again. A bit of a wobble in their top order saw them at 3/13 and then 4/31 but that was as good as it got as they chased the target down in 15 overs.

Whist the 2nd grade cupboard was bare for the second season running, there were a number of great performances during the season. Club stalwart Darren Southwell just keeps taking wickets and finished the season with 56 wickets. Oli Cheatle continues to improve and he bagged 33. With the bat, Jimmy Dimarhos had a great year with 421. Sid Girish is improving every season with 317 runs. Jezza, Matt, Phil, Abhinash and Gansey all finished with over 200 runs. Young guns Braiden McCarten and Tom Phelps both had good seasons and it won't be long before both are donning the Baggy Blue.

BATTING AVERAGES

(minimum 150 runs)

Name	Mat	Inns	N.O's	Runs	HS	Ave
James Dimarhos	12	13	2	421	114	38.27
Sid Girish	20	22	3	317	73	16.68
Jeremy Macdonald	16	17	4	292	111	22.46
Matthew Cutler	13	17	4	291	52	22.38
Philip Moore	6	9	2	265	76*	37.86
Abhinash Kumar	14	14	1	255	49	19.62
Chris Gane	6	6	0	216	62	36.00
Braiden McCarten	8	10	2	186	67	23.25
Bradley Falkenberg	3	3	0	166	85	55.33
Joshua Gregory	15	13	0	163	67	12.54
Simon Fahey	10	9	1	150	60	18.75

BOWLING AVERAGES

(minimum 15 wickets)

Name	Overs	Mdns	Wkts	Runs	Ave	B/B
Darren Southwell	280	89	56	767	13.70	5/18
Oliver Cheatle	162.2	26	33	548	16.61	3/15
Abhinash Kumar	106.3	16	17	335	19.71	3/40
Hamish Starr	78.1	17	17	242	14.24	5/37

Third Grade Report

3rd Time Triple Crown Champions

FG Sides Cup Winners



Back Row: A Mitton, O Fox, B Moore, C Edgar, J Brown, L Blissett Middle Row: T Phelps, S Frost, P Solway (capt), M Stachow, D Horsfall Middle Row: V Bennett

The 3rd Grade team had another fantastic season winning all 3 trophies on offer.

Our grade used 36 players across the 3 formats with our age ranging from 15 up to 53. There were many outstanding contributions throughout the season. 4 batsman scored 500 runs and 6 bowlers took more than 10 wickets. 6 batsman scored centuries including a personal best 155 for David Horsfall and excellent maiden centuries from Angus Jones and Jack Allen. Michael Stachow and Lincoln Blissett also scored centuries in there excellent season.

The first of our 3 finals was the T20 final played at Manuka against Tuggeranong. The game was a cracker and as has been the case in the past, our team found a way to win another close match. Qbn batted first and after being 7 for 40 made a respectable 112. Braiden McCarten and Lincoln Blissett were the stars with the bat combining for a match winning partnership. A wonderful bowling and fielding effort saw Tuggeranong restricted to 9/105. Michael Stachow, Alex Mitton, Lincoln Blissett and Ben Allen all bowled with great control and purpose.

Arch rivals ANU were our 1 day final rivals played on Freebody Oval. Queanbeyan elected to bat and made 8 for 184 with David Horsfall making 30 and Sam Frost showing his emerging talents with a quick fire 25. Our bowlers were once again dominant and proceeded to rout ANU for only 56. Michael Stachow was the star taking 6 for 18 off 8 overs.

One-day Cup Winners



Back Row: A Mitton, L Blissett, J Allen, B McCarten, C Edgar, B Allen Front Row: V Bennett, S Frost, D Horsfall, P Solway (capt), M Stachow, T Klower

The 2 day final was another enthralling contest against ANU once again. ANU batted first and made a respectable 152 with Alex Mitton and Vinesh Bennett the pick of the bowlers. At stumps on day 1, we had slumped to 4 for 14 with our batting guns, Michael Stachow, Lincoln Blissett, Sam Frost and David Horsfall all back in the pavilion. Tom Phelps showed his courage and patience early on day 2and was involved in partnerships with the skipper and Cameron Edgar until things look doomed at 8 for 95. It was at this time Brad Moore and Alex Mitton combined to put on 46 and get us to within 12 runs of the target when Mitton was run out. Enter our No. 11, Ollie Fox, a talented young up and coming all-rounder. Ollie was superb in facing 22 balls without scoring whilst Brad Moore at the other end patiently knocked over the required runs. Brad remained 32no in a memorable performance to get his side over the line. Ollie's effort was outstanding for a player of his age and the pressure of the situation.

As mentioned above, there were many fine contributors in 3rd grade this season. Michael Stachow was outstanding and won the ACT 3rd grade player of the year. David Horsfall and Lincoln Blissett were consistent and as was the experienced Vinesh Bennett who played good, hard tough cricket all year.

Alex Mitton was superb with the ball as was Tristan Klower until his form warranted playing the second half of the season in 2nd Grade. Cameron Edgar continues to improve with both bat and ball.

Twenty/20 Cup Winners



Back Row: A Mitton, D Horsfall, K Evans, B Moore, B McCarten, A Jones, B Allen Front Row: L Blissett, M Stachow, P Solway (capt), M Cutler, T Klower

As has been the case for a number of years now, another crop of talented juniors emerged throughout the season. Braiden McCarten played some excellent innings and was rewarded with promotion to 2nd grade for most of the year and then made his first grade debut in the semi-final vs Weston Creek. Tom Christou did a fantastic job when called on and will no doubt play higher grades in the years to come. His effort and character are examples for others to follow. Sam Frost is emerging as a fine all round cricketer and is another who will go on to play at a higher level in the not too distant future. Josh Fahey, Jack Manners, Duane Bush and Brad Milyn are other youngsters who gained valuable experience in 3rd grade this season. I look forward to following their progression over the coming years.

A big thank you our selectors for always getting 12 players on the paddock. Thanks also to our curator, Greg Dawes for producing the best wickets in the district.

A final big thank you to my fellow senior players in Dave Horsfall, Vinesh Bennett and Michael Stachow for helping make 3rd grade such an enjoyable team to play in. There is always plenty of banter and fun times but and just as importantly our youngsters can learn plenty from watching and listening to these guys. The strength of our club is and has been now for some time these types of guys playing the game and putting back in for the younger generation.

Look forwards, I believe our Club is in an extremely strong position due to the number of quality juniors coming through, the experienced cricketers we have involved at our Club along with the quality of the facilities we are fortunate enough to have to play our cricket on each week.

Peter Solway

BATTING AVERAGES

(minimum 150 runs)

Name	Mat	Inns	N.O's	Runs	HS	Ave
Michael Stachow	20	19	4	718	110	47.87
Peter Solway	21	14	4	624	115*	62.40
David Horsfall	18	17	2	557	155	37.13
Lincoln Blissett	21	17	2	530	107	35.33
Samuel Frost	13	14	1	256	94	19.69
Braiden McCarten	8	8	1	216	49	30.86
Matthew Cutler	6	5	0	201	56	40.20
Vinesh Bennett	12	8	2	199	93	33.17
Cameron Edgar	12	12	1	168	32	15.27

BOWLING AVERAGES

(minimum 15 wickets)

Name	Overs	Maidens	Wkts	Runs	Ave	B/B
Michael Stachow	148.5	39	33	353	10.70	6/18
Lincoln Blissett	107	12	21	356	16.95	3/40
Tristan Klower	76.3	9	20	282	14.10	4/58
Cameron Edgar	78	20	17	233	13.71	3/8
Alexander Mitton	72	15	17	198	11.65	4/15

Fourth Grade Report

One-day Cup Winners and Two-day Premiers

Two-day Premiers



Back Row: Tom Christou, Will Graham, Steve Cross, Duane Bush, Front Row: Khye Ditton, Peter Jensen, Adrian Brunker (capt), Matt Harding, Michael O'Rourke, Harry O'Rourke, Micah Manners

The 2017/18 season was one of the best seasons for Fourth Grade for many years ending several seasons of heartbreak in finals. We competed in all three competition Grand Finals winning the One Day Title (first time since 2009/10) and Two Day Title (first time since 2008/09) but unable to retain the T20 Title.

Fourth Grade had three captains during the season with:

- Matt Harding being originally appointed leading the team during the T20 competition only to be injured against ANU in the second round of the One Day Competition and returned to captain for three of the Two Day Competition rounds
- Adrian Brunker taking over for the remainder of the One Day Competition including the Grand Final and most of the Two Day Competition including the finals
- Stephen Cross stepping in for Rounds 5 and 6 plus the Semi-Final during the One Day Competition

As a team, we had some exceptional performances throughout the season.

Batting:

- Two x One Day Competition Centuries: Stephen Cross 128no and Khye Ditton 117
- Three x Two Day Competition Centuries: Michael O'Rourke 116no and 106 and Adrian Brunker 105no

- Four players scoring 350+ runs for the season: Adrian Brunker (543 @ 49.36), Khye Ditton (471 @ 39.25), Stephen Cross (375 @ 26.79) and Michael O'Rourke (353 @ 88.25)
- An unbeaten Second Wicket Partnership of 163 between Michael O'Rourke and Duane Bush
- An unbeaten Sixth Wicket Partnership of 159 between Adrian Brunker and Peter Jensen

Bowling:

- T20 Five Wickets in an Innings: Tom Christou 5/11
- Two Day Five Wickets in an Innings: Tom Christou 6/32 and Will Graham 5/20
- Five players taking over 20 wickets for the season: Will Graham (31 @ 15.71), Peter Jensen (26 @ 15.88), Tom Christou (25 @ 8.52), Khye Ditton (25 @ 11.20) and Micah Manners (21 @ 13.57)

The club is in a good position with several juniors contributing to the team's success during the season. These included:

- Blake McCarten in his debut season did well behind the stumps and contributed with the bat on several occasions
- Matthew Rebus showed potential in the opportunities he had during the season with both bat and ball
- Harry O'Rourke's spin bowling provided team with a good balance of bowlers during the later stages of the Two Day Competition. It will be a new challenge for Harry to adapt when he has the opportunity during the One Day Competitions.
- Other juniors to play during the season included Felix Bennett, Rory Di-Campli, Josh Fahey, Max Hunter, Dane Klower, Jasper Haskins, Rory O'Brien, Ben Thurling and Tom Walker.

T20 Competition:

We completed the competition rounds with three wins from our three matches and defeated Norths in the semi-final to host Eastlake in the Grand Final at Neal Bulger Oval.

Whilst our form in the pool matches and semi-final were good we saved our worst performance for the grand final finishing with 9/104 from our 20 overs with Micah Manners 45no providing the bulk of the scoring. Unfortunately due to a rain delay Eastlake's total was reduced to 79 in 14 overs and although our bowling and fielding kept us in the game we had them 6/43 after eight overs some lusty hitting secured the win for Eastlake at the start of the 12th over.

Stand out performances during the pool matches were Tom Christou 5/11 vs Eastlake and Michael Gilshenan 46no vs Western Creek Molonglo.

One Day Competition:

We completed the round matches of this competition with six wins and a loss from our seven matches to finish in first place on the table. The semi-final saw us set Western Creek Molonglo a target of 166 then we bowled them out for 160 in the 44th over.

One-day Cup Winners



Back Row: Gary Rees (Umpire), Micah Manners, Tom Christou, Jack Manners, Rohan Ditton, Adam Couch, Matt Harding, Robbie Brigden (Umpire)

Front Row: Steve Cross, Duane Bush, Adrian Brunker (capt), Khye Ditton, Peter Jensen, Will Graham, Rizwan Momin

The Grand Final saw us host ANU who batted first scoring 6/197. We were 3/29 early on before Khye Ditton (88) and Adrian Brunker (29) moved us along to 4/106. With the score at 185 and victory in sight we lost 5/7 to be 9/192 going into the last over with Peter Jensen (5no) levelling the scores it was up to Adam Couch to hit the winning run from the last ball of the innings.

We had an excellent run in the regular season with the first two rounds of matches providing a good foundation for our season in this competition with highlights being:

- defeating Western District UC in the first round by one wicket in the last over following an unbeaten last wicket stand of 36 between our youngest players in Jack Manners (40no) and Jasper Haskins (13no) on debut
- defeating a strong ANU side in the second round with some excellent death bowling from Tom Christou and Will Graham
- Khye Ditton scoring 117 from 89 balls in the team's total of 263 against Ginninderra in round 3 before bowling them out for 125 with Ryan Martin taking 5/15
- Khye Ditton scoring 92 against Eastlake in Round 4
- Life Member Stephen Cross (128no from 128 balls) scoring his maiden club century whilst captaining a very young side against Tuggeranong with some late hitting from 5th Grade captain Dom Di-Campli (43no from 28 balls) in Round 5
- Micah Manners providing an all round performance against Western Creek Molonglo in Round 7 taking 4/24 and scoring 38

Two Day Competition:

We completed the round matches of this competition with four wins, two draws and a loss from our seven matches to finish in fourth place on the table. The early round matches prior to Christmas left us towards the bottom of the table following a draw with Wests UC due to day 2's play being washed out with Wests requiring five runs for first innings points, then a loss to ANU. Whilst we starting 2018 with a draw with Ginninderra.

During the next four matches all of our opposition teams batted for long periods of time on good batting wickets which resulted in us becoming very good at grinding out the opposition by using our ability to concentrate for long periods of time in the field and take our chances when they were provided to us. Our bowlers also became adept at bowling for long spells and providing little scoring opportunities. We managed to quickly chase down opposition scores to provide us with some opportunity to try for maximum points for most of the matches.

The semi-final saw us playing away against Eastlake at Deakin West. Eastlake won the toss and chose to bat and with us taking wickets in batches we bowled them out for 97 in 57 overs with 27 maiden overs being bowled in total. Khye Ditton 4/31 (5 maidens), Micah Manners 3/14 (8 maidens), Will Graham 2/18 and Harry O'Rourke 1/6 (10 maidens) took the wickets. In reply we finished Day 1 at 4/190 with Michael O'Rourke scoring 106 and Duane Bush 34 before Eastlake conceded the game after an hour of play on Day 2 with the score at 7/254 with Blake McCarten scoring an unbeaten 33.

The grand final saw us play ANU at ANU North with ANU winning the toss and batting first on a good batting wicket. We took an early wicket before settling into the grind required resulting in some quick wickets falling together to have ANU 4/62 then 6/119 just prior to the tea break. After having them 9/119 we allowed the last wicket partnership to score a 56 run partnership ending the innings at 175. This left Michael O'Rourke and Stephen Cross with the task of batting for approximately 25 minutes finishing the days play on day 1 at 0/15 from 6 overs.

We lost two wickets in the 25th over to be 2/46 before M O'Rourke (58) was out with the score at 3/82 then 4/91 when Blake McCarten was out. Khye Ditton (23) and Adrian Brunker (52no) steadied the innings taking the score to 136 before Khye was out and soon after the score was 6/140 when Micah Manners was out. Matt Harding (18no) joined Brunks at the crease with the pair finishing the match in a hurry with Brunks hitting the winning runs with a six and also bring up his half century.

Highlights of the competition were

- Duane Bush scoring a patient 39 against Ginninderra during one of the hottest days of the season on an up and down wicket which also then allowed Adrian Brunker (105no) and Peter Jensen (59no) to put on an unbeaten 159 run partnership for the six wicket allowing us to declare at 5/251 on day 1. Unfortunately day 2's wicket was a perfect batting wicket and whilst our bowlers toiled away for about 90 overs with Will Graham taking 4/47 bowling into the wind, we were unable to take the final wicket
- Eastlake sending us in during Round 4 with the team scoring 231 with Adrian Brunker 63. In reply we bowled Eastlake out for 73 in 71 overs after having them 3/1 on day 1.
- Chasing down Tuggeranong's 157 from 106 overs in quick time with an unbeaten second wicket partnership of 163 between Michael O'Rourke (116no) and Duane Bush (55no) finishing the innings at 1/180 after 36 overs in Round 5
- Chasing Norths 113 (Will Graham 4/36) down in the last over of the first day to secure first innings points before declaring at 7/190 (Stephen Cross 77) and trying unsuccessfully for an outright victory

• Chasing Western Creek Molonglo's score of 142 (Will Graham 5/20 and Khye Ditton 4/43) down quickly early on day 2 declaring at 6/175 and trying unsuccessfully for an outright victory

Thanks go to Steve Cross for assisting with ground set up for all our home matches an bringing an esky with drinks for the away matches, Selectors Adrian Brunker and Michael Frost with the selections each week to ensure we had players in all grades, Curator Greg Dawes for the preparation of Neil Bulger Oval and all the other players who played in fourth grade this season before moving up the grades or filling in when required.

Last but not least a really big thanks to all the players' families and friends for coming along and supporting us each week or for allowing their partners to have time away to play cricket.

Michael O'Rourke

BATTING AVERAGES

(minimum 150 runs)

Name	Mat	Inns	N.O's	Runs	H.S.	Ave
Adrian Brunker	15	14	3	543	105*	49.36
Khye Ditton	13	12	0	471	117	39.25
Stephen Cross	20	16	2	375	128*	26.79
Michael O'Rourke	5	5	1	353	116*	88.25
Micah Manners	15	14	1	288	45*	22.15
Duane Bush	13	13	1	245	55*	20.42
Peter Jensen	19	13	4	209	59*	23.22
Rohan Ditton	10	10	1	165	35	18.33

BOWLING AVERAGES

(minimum 15 wickets)

Name	Overs	Mdns	Wkts	Runs	Ave	B/B
William Graham	206.4	54	31	487	15.71	5/20
Peter Jensen	165	40	26	413	15.88	3/15
Thomas Christou	82.5	19	25	213	8.52	6/32
Khye Ditton	153.3	67	25	280	11.20	4/31
Micah Manners	107.1	26	21	285	13.57	4/24

Fifth Grade Report

Premiers



Back row: Anup Pereria, Adam Couch, Daniel Clugston, Aaron Thorn, Matt O'Brien, John Fern,
Jim Martin, Graeme Alexander
Front row: Jono White, Dom DiCampli, Rory DiCampli, Mitch Fern, Rory O'Brien

I made a somewhat last minute decision to come out of retirement and play my first full season in about 20 years. The opportunity to have a season with my son was too good an opportunity to refuse. With Thorny keen to have a crack in 4th grade, I was approached to captain the team. I was a bit reluctant at first due to a number of reasons:

- I wasn't exactly sure how committed I really was;
- Having been away from cricket for so long, I didn't really know many of the players;
- I knew that I would probably upset a few of the regulars as my mantra would be to mix things up and ensure the youngsters got a good opportunity in all situations

The season really couldn't have panned out any better. We were competitive right from the start and finished the season as minor premiers having lost only 4 matches during the regular season. This gave me the opportunity to ensure everyone in the team was given the chance to perform with bat and ball in just about every match that we played. The team consisted of about 14 core players who played most of the year. This included our youngsters in the two Rory's and Mitch (who is almost a veteran). The boys did an amazing job during the season as Rory D finished the year as our 4th leading run-scorer (an amazing achievement for a 13 year old having his first crack on turf). Rory O showed some real touches of class with the bat, put on a yard of pace during the season and probably took the 3 best catches for the entire season. Mitch backed up his excellent previous season as he ended up being our 4th leading wicket taker with xx wickets.

We then had our 'veterans' in Ferny, Jimmy, Bunyip, Thorny, Cluggo and Doyley. These guys provided just the right amount of advice when I needed it and I thank them for organising things when Rory and I were running late from junior cricket.

Ferny tells me that he is hanging up his boots. If that's true, what a way to go out - he hit his final ball for four and took wickets off his final two deliveries.

The other four mainstays of our team included Jono, Matt, Anup and Couchy. Matt was having his first year of cricket as he too took the opportunity of playing with his son. The year didn't start off great as he broke his finger in the very first game and also suffered a number of soft tissue injuries along the way. But his bowling was a factor towards the end of the season, highlighted by his 3 wickets in the semi-final.

Anup was a wonderful person to have around and just generally loved being around the guys. His pre-game ritual of running a lap around the oval didn't quite take off with the rest of us (although Mitch did join him from time to time). Anup was a livewire in the field and probably provided me with one of the season highlights when he was clean bowled but just wanted to confirm with the umpire that he was out. In his defence, the ball did keep low and almost bounced twice before it crashed into the stumps.

It would be fair to say that bowling was our strength as Cluggo, Jimmy, the Ferns and Bunyip all took at least 15 wickets (96 all up). I was always confident that we could bowl teams out with you guys at my disposal. Batting on the other hand was probably left to too few as we suffered many mini batting collapses during the season. However, there was one mainstay of our batting, that being Jono. Jono had an unbelievable season that included his maiden century for the club – and boy what a century it was, 162no v Tuggeranong in round 7. Jono finished the year with an incredible 669 runs at an average of 55.75.

There were also couple of huge milestones during the season with:

- Bunyip taking his 500th wicket for the club
- Ferny taking his 400th wicket for the club

The semi-final saw us up against the very strong Western District UC team that featured a number of ex City & Suburban first graders. We were also dealing with the fact that they had comfortably flogged us just the week before in the last match of the regular season. But boy, didn't we turn the tables on them in the semi with Jono, Bunyip and myself all contributing with the bat to set an imposing target of 223. Bunyip, Cluggo, Matt and the Ferns then ripped through their batting to dismiss them for 100.

I'd been told that this team had a bit of a history of falling at the last hurdle, so a few of the boys were pretty nervous on grand-final day. This wasn't helped by overnight rain that had left a nice big wet patch right on a length and to make matters worse, me losing the toss (for about the 14th time this season) and being sent into bat. Thorny, Jono and Bunyip did a great job at the top of the order in battling through the tough start. Things still looked bleak when we were only 45 runs off the first 25 overs, but we dug deep and did an amazing job to set Weston Creek 184 to win.

Cluggo and Bunyip then tore through the Weston Creek team to have them 8/71. A late rally saw them reach 128 but still resulted in a comfortable win and grand-final success for the mighty 5th graders. Cluggo finished with 5/16 in a match winning performance.

Given the club made finals in four grades, it was always going to be difficult with the slide factor. We had two players impacted by this – Anup and Doyley. I was personally shattered that both of these guys missed out on playing in the grand-final team. But rest assured, you are very much part of the winning team.

Just a few quick thankyous:

- To Batesy for preparing a fantastic playing surface at Brad Haddin Oval for each of our home matches. The wicket was certainly as good as I have ever seen it.
- To our club selectors thanks for ensuring I was never short during the season.
- To my wife. Our summer weekends were a bit of a write-off. Junior cricket in the morning, followed by grade in the afternoon. Sunday's were then no good as I was always recovering (it sucks getting old).

What a season -2017/18 premiers.

I'm not sure if I'll back up for another season, but you never know.

Dom DiCampli

BATTING AVERAGES

(minimum 75 runs)

		,	,			
Name	Mat	Inns	N.O's	Runs	H.S	Ave
Jono White	18	17	5	669	162*	55.75
Dom Di-Campli	16	14	6	528	82	66.00
Graeme Alexander	18	17	4	272	51	20.92
Rory Di-Campli	18	17	2	178	37*	11.87
Daniel Clugston	17	11	0	128	27	11.64
Rizwan Momin	1	1	0	95	95	95.00
Rory O'Brien	13	11	2	91	23*	10.11
Adam Couch	7	5	1	91	33	22.75
John Fern	15	8	1	88	27	12.57

BOWLING AVERAGES

(minimum 7 wickets)

Name	Overs	Mdns	Wkts	Runs	Ave	B/B
Daniel Clugston	106	19	24	275	11.46	5/16
James Martin	86.4	17	22	272	12.36	4/15
John Fern	88.5	28	20	199	9.95	4/24
Graeme Alexander	98	15	15	249	16.60	3/10
Mitchell Fern	71.2	7	15	293	19.53	2/16
Rory Di-Campli	40.1	8	8	105	13.13	4/3

Greybaggers Report



Back row: Nick Harvey, Brian Connell, John Fern, Bill Turner, Ashley Edwards, Ian Hamill Front row: Lawrie Kirk, Steve Moore (capt) Ron Bates, Jim Martin, Martin Kennedy, Keith Bridgen

Others not pictured: Peter Baker, Peter Somerville, John Brunker, Les Harris, Ron McGlashan & Grant Butler

It was an early start to the season as Queanbeyan was invited to enter a team in the inaugural NSW Over 50s Regional Championship. The Competition started in mid-September with 8 teams participating with teams being split into two pools of four. Our first two matches were played in Sydney over the weekend of the 16/17 September. We had a comfortable win over NSW Cricketers Club on the Saturday. Then on the Sunday we had a heartbreaking 2 run loss against Roseville. The 3rd match was then played back here in Canberra against the Southern Highlands Eagles a few weeks later, unfortunately we were soundly beaten.

In regards to the Over 50s Competition, the team had a mixed season, starting strongly but then falling away late after a couple of close losses mid-season. We played good hard cricket but too often dropped that crucial catch or failed to get those extra 20 runs.

Our batting line-up was led by new recruit Les Harris who always took the attack up to the bowlers and became the first Greybagger to score 200 runs in a season. We also welcomed Peter Somerville into the fold this season. Peter was only able to play a couple of matches but showed real class with the bat. Solid contributions from Keith Bridgen and Ian Hamill also helped propel us to some solid totals.

Bill Turner led the bowling attack with some hostile spells and Keith Bridgen, Jimmy Martin, Peter Baker, Nick Harvey and John Fern always put pressure on the opposition.

The Over 50s competition saw good, hard cricket with little quarter given on the field.

However, we enjoyed great camaraderie between the teams off the field with cold beverages shared after the matches. Thanks to Ron for organising the team and providing afternoon tea for all our home games.

Looking forward to the 2018-19 season and hope we will see some new teams participating.

BATTING AVERAGES

(minimum 50 runs)

Name	Mat	Inns	N.O's	Runs	H.S	Ave
Leslie Harris	7	7	3	200	41*	50.00
Stephen Moore	7	7	2	169	41*	33.80
Ian Hamill	6	6	2	129	40*	32.25
Keith Bridgen	9	8	6	113	32*	56.50
James Martin	10	10	4	97	35*	16.17
Peter Somerville	4	4	2	87	40*	43.50
Brian Connell	5	5	0	63	33	12.60
Lawrie Kirk	6	6	0	61	28	10.17
David Mankey	3	3	0	59	33	19.67

BOWLING AVERAGES

(minimum 5 wickets)

		(11111111111111111111111111111111111111				
Name	Overs	Mdns	Wkts	Runs	Ave	B/B
James Martin	58	7	10	241	24.10	4/36
Keith Bridgen	53.1	5	9	142	15.78	3/15
Peter Baker	31.4	3	7	151	21.57	3/29
John Fern	30	2	6	88	14.67	3/23
Bill Turner	40	8	5	180	36.00	2/9

Club Records

Club Championships

(TE Rolfe Cup) 1936-1937, 1957-1958, 1958-1959, 1959-1960 1989-1990, 1991-1992, 2009-2010, 2016-2017

1st Grade

Douglas Cup Premierships

1927-1928, 1928-1929, 1935-1936, 1939-1940, 1957-1958, 1980-1981, 1982-1983, 1985-1986, 1986-1987, 1987-1988, 1990-1991, 1991-1992, 2009-2010, 2010-2011, 2011-2012

Minor Premiers

1927-1928, 1928-1929, 1934-1935 1939-1940, 1957-1958 (A & R Construction Trophy) 1982-1983, 1987-1988, 1989-1990, 1991-1992, 2013-2014

One-Day Competitions

1986-1987, 1987-1988, 1992-1993, 1993-1994, 1997-1998 (Konica Cup) 2001-2002, 2009-2010 (John Gallop Cup) 2010-2011, 2011-2012, 2013-2014, 2015-2016

Twenty20 Competition

2008-2009, 2009-2010 (Konica Minolta Regional Cup) 2011-2012, 2015-16

Sunday League

1989-1990

Toohev's Twilight Competition

1981-1982, 1983-1984, 1987-1988, 1988-1989, 1989-1990, 1990-1991, 1991-1992, 1993-1994, 1995-1996, 1996-1997

SCG Country Cup 2011-2012

Team Records

Highest Team Score (2 day):	728	vs Ginninderra	1985-1986
Lowest Team Score (2 day):	13	vs Duntroon	1923-1924
Highest Team Score (1 day):	8/369	vs City and Suburban	2006-2007
#Lowest Team Score (1 day):	59	vs Tuggeranong	1992-1993
Highest Team Score (T/20):	5/224	vs Ginninderra	2007-2008
#Lowest Team Score (T/20):	68	vs Tuggeranong	2010-2011

[#] does not include reduced over matches

Individual Records

Most Runs in a Season 1139 J. Swift 1999-2000 Best Batting Average: 71.44 P. Solway 1989-1990 Highest Individual Score (2 day): 339 P. Solway vs ANU 1989-1990 Highest Individual Score (LO): 147 J Dean vs Wagga Wagga 2009-2010 Highest Individual Score (T20): 108* J Dean vs ACT U/19 2011-2012 Most Wickets in a Season 63 N Croker 1929-1930 Best Bowling Average: 7.81 R. Flockton 1974-1975 Best Bowling Performance (2 day) 9/29 L Manwaring vs Turner 1962-1963 Best Bowling Performance (LO) 7/31 DG Southwell vs Weston (6/43 & 8/23) 2004-2005 Best Bowling Performance (T20) 4/14 V Dukoski vs Eastlake 2011-2012 Most Dismissal (Wkt Keeper): 52 A. Ayre (38c, 14st) 2011-2012 Most Dismissal Inning (W/K): 6 M. Carruthers (6c) 1983-1984 Most Catches Season (Fielder): 21 B Dean 2013-2014 Most Catches Innings (Fielder): 5 M Wheeler 1962-1963				
Highest Individual Score (2 day): 339 P. Solway vs ANU 1989-1990 Highest Individual Score (LO): 147 J Dean vs Wagga Wagga 2009-2010 Highest Individual Score (T20): 108* J Dean vs ACT U/19 2011-2012 Most Wickets in a Season 63 N Croker 1929-1930 Best Bowling Average: 7.81 R. Flockton 1974-1975 Best Bowling Performance (2 day) 9/29 L Manwaring vs Turner 1962-1963 Best Bowling Match 14/66 TH O'Connor vs Kingston (6/43 & 8/23) 1947-1948 Best Bowling Performance (LO) 7/31 DG Southwell vs Weston Creek 2004-2005 Best Bowling Performance (T20) 4/14 V Dukoski vs Eastlake 2011-2012 Most Dismissals (Wkt Keeper): 52 A. Ayre (38c, 14st) 2011-2012 Most Dismissal Inning (W/K): 6 M. Carruthers (6c) 1983-1984 Most Dismissal Match (W/K): 7 JW McNamara (4c, 3st) 1952-1953 M Carruthers (6c, 1st) 1990-1991 Most Catches Season (Fielder): 5 M Wheeler 1962-1963	Most Runs in a Season	1139	J. Swift	1999-2000
Highest Individual Score (LO): 147 J Dean vs Wagga Wagga 2009-2010 Highest Individual Score (T20): 108* J Dean vs ACT U/19 2011-2012 Most Wickets in a Season 63 N Croker 1929-1930 Best Bowling Average: 7.81 R. Flockton 1974-1975 Best Bowling Performance (2 day) 9/29 L Manwaring vs Turner 1962-1963 Best Bowling Match 14/66 TH O'Connor vs Kingston (6/43 & 8/23) 1947-1948 Best Bowling Performance (LO) 7/31 DG Southwell vs Weston Creek 2004-2005 Best Bowling Performance (T20) 4/14 V Dukoski vs Eastlake 2011-2012 Most Dismissals (Wkt Keeper): 52 A. Ayre (38c, 14st) 2011-2012 Most Dismissal Inning (W/K): 6 M. Carruthers (6c) 1983-1984 Most Dismissal Match (W/K): 7 JW McNamara (4c, 3st) 1952-1953 M Carruthers (6c, 1st) 1990-1991 Most Catches Season (Fielder): 5 M Wheeler 1962-1963 Most Catches Innings (Fielder): 5 M Wheeler 1962-1963 G Hannaford	Best Batting Average:	71.44	P. Solway	1989-1990
Highest Individual Score (T20): 108* J Dean vs ACT U/19 2011-2012 Most Wickets in a Season 63 N Croker 1929-1930 Best Bowling Average: 7.81 R. Flockton 1974-1975 Best Bowling Performance (2 day) 9/29 L Manwaring vs Turner 1962-1963 Best Bowling Match 14/66 TH O'Connor vs Kingston (6/43 & 8/23) 1947-1948 Best Bowling Performance (LO) 7/31 DG Southwell vs Weston Creek 2004-2005 Best Bowling Performance (T20) 4/14 V Dukoski vs Eastlake 2011-2012 Most Dismissals (Wkt Keeper): 52 A. Ayre (38c, 14st) 2011-2012 Most Dismissal Inning (W/K): 6 M. Carruthers (6c) 1983-1984 Most Dismissal Match (W/K): 7 JW McNamara (4c, 3st) 1952-1953 M Carruthers (6c, 1st) 1990-1991 1990-1991 Most Catches Season (Fielder): 21 B Dean 2013-2014 Most Catches Innings (Fielder): 5 M Wheeler 1962-1963 G Hannaford 1985-1986 A Heading 2001-2002 </td <td>Highest Individual Score (2 day):</td> <td>339</td> <td>P. Solway vs ANU</td> <td>1989-1990</td>	Highest Individual Score (2 day):	339	P. Solway vs ANU	1989-1990
Most Wickets in a Season 63 N Croker 1929-1930 Best Bowling Average: 7.81 R. Flockton 1974-1975 Best Bowling Performance (2 day) 9/29 L Manwaring vs Turner 1962-1963 Best Bowling Match 14/66 TH O'Connor vs Kingston (6/43 & 8/23) 1947-1948 Best Bowling Performance (LO) 7/31 DG Southwell vs Weston Creek 2004-2005 Best Bowling Performance (T20) 4/14 V Dukoski vs Eastlake 2011-2012 Most Dismissals (Wkt Keeper): 52 A. Ayre (38c, 14st) 2011-2012 Most Dismissal Inning (W/K): 6 M. Carruthers (6c) 1983-1984 Most Dismissal Match (W/K): 7 JW McNamara (4c, 3st) 1952-1953 M Carruthers (6c, 1st) 1990-1991 Most Catches Season (Fielder): 21 B Dean 2013-2014 Most Catches Innings (Fielder): 5 M Wheeler 1962-1963 G Hannaford 1985-1986 A Heading 2001-2002	Highest Individual Score (LO):	147	J Dean vs Wagga Wagga	2009-2010
Best Bowling Average: 7.81 R. Flockton 1974-1975 Best Bowling Performance (2 day) 9/29 L Manwaring vs Turner 1962-1963 Best Bowling Match 14/66 TH O'Connor vs Kingston (6/43 & 8/23) 1947-1948 Best Bowling Performance (LO) 7/31 DG Southwell vs Weston Creek 2004-2005 Best Bowling Performance (T20) 4/14 V Dukoski vs Eastlake 2011-2012 Most Dismissals (Wkt Keeper): 52 A. Ayre (38c, 14st) 2011-2012 Most Dismissal Inning (W/K): 6 M. Carruthers (6c) 1983-1984 Most Dismissal Match (W/K): 7 JW McNamara (4c, 3st) 1952-1953 M Carruthers (6c, 1st) 1990-1991 1990-1991 Most Catches Season (Fielder): 21 B Dean 2013-2014 Most Catches Innings (Fielder): 5 M Wheeler 1962-1963 G Hannaford 1985-1986 A Heading 2001-2002	Highest Individual Score (T20):	108*	J Dean vs ACT U/19	2011-2012
Best Bowling Performance (2 day) 9/29 L Manwaring vs Turner 1962-1963 Best Bowling Match 14/66 TH O'Connor vs Kingston (6/43 & 8/23) 1947-1948 Best Bowling Performance (LO) 7/31 DG Southwell vs Weston Creek 2004-2005 Best Bowling Performance (T20) 4/14 V Dukoski vs Eastlake 2011-2012 Most Dismissals (Wkt Keeper): 52 A. Ayre (38c, 14st) 2011-2012 Most Dismissal Inning (W/K): 6 M. Carruthers (6c) 1983-1984 Most Dismissal Match (W/K): 7 JW McNamara (4c, 3st) 1952-1953 Most Catches Season (Fielder): 21 B Dean 2013-2014 Most Catches Innings (Fielder): 5 M Wheeler 1962-1963 Most Catches Innings (Fielder): 5 M Wheeler 1962-1963 A Heading 2001-2002	Most Wickets in a Season	63	N Croker	1929-1930
Best Bowling Match 14/66 TH O'Connor vs Kingston (6/43 & 8/23) 1947-1948 Best Bowling Performance (LO) 7/31 DG Southwell vs Weston Creek 2004-2005 Best Bowling Performance (T20) 4/14 V Dukoski vs Eastlake 2011-2012 Most Dismissals (Wkt Keeper): 52 A. Ayre (38c, 14st) 2011-2012 Most Dismissal Inning (W/K): 6 M. Carruthers (6c) 1983-1984 Most Dismissal Match (W/K): 7 JW McNamara (4c, 3st) 1952-1953 M Carruthers (6c, 1st) 1990-1991 Most Catches Season (Fielder): 21 B Dean 2013-2014 Most Catches Innings (Fielder): 5 M Wheeler 1962-1963 G Hannaford 1985-1986 A Heading 2001-2002	Best Bowling Average:	7.81	R. Flockton	1974-1975
Color Creek Best Bowling Performance (LO) 7/31 DG Southwell vs Weston Creek	Best Bowling Performance (2 day)	9/29	L Manwaring vs Turner	1962-1963
Best Bowling Performance (LO) 7/31 DG Southwell vs Weston Creek 2004-2005 Best Bowling Performance (T20) 4/14 V Dukoski vs Eastlake 2011-2012 Most Dismissals (Wkt Keeper): 52 A. Ayre (38c, 14st) 2011-2012 Most Dismissal Inning (W/K): 6 M. Carruthers (6c) 1983-1984 Most Dismissal Match (W/K): 7 JW McNamara (4c, 3st) 1952-1953 M Carruthers (6c, 1st) 1990-1991 Most Catches Season (Fielder): 21 B Dean 2013-2014 Most Catches Innings (Fielder): 5 M Wheeler 1962-1963 G Hannaford 1985-1986 A Heading 2001-2002	Best Bowling Match	14/66	TH O'Connor vs Kingston	1947-1948
Best Bowling Performance (T20) 4/14 V Dukoski vs Eastlake 2011-2012 Most Dismissals (Wkt Keeper): 52 A. Ayre (38c, 14st) 2011-2012 Most Dismissal Inning (W/K): 6 M. Carruthers (6c) 1983-1984 Most Dismissal Match (W/K): 7 JW McNamara (4c, 3st) 1952-1953 M Carruthers (6c, 1st) 1990-1991 Most Catches Season (Fielder): 21 B Dean 2013-2014 Most Catches Innings (Fielder): 5 M Wheeler 1962-1963 G Hannaford 1985-1986 A Heading 2001-2002			(6/43 & 8/23)	
Best Bowling Performance (T20) 4/14 V Dukoski vs Eastlake 2011-2012 Most Dismissals (Wkt Keeper): 52 A. Ayre (38c, 14st) 2011-2012 Most Dismissal Inning (W/K): 6 M. Carruthers (6c) 1983-1984 Most Dismissal Match (W/K): 7 JW McNamara (4c, 3st) 1952-1953 M Carruthers (6c, 1st) 1990-1991 Most Catches Season (Fielder): 21 B Dean 2013-2014 Most Catches Innings (Fielder): 5 M Wheeler 1962-1963 G Hannaford 1985-1986 A Heading 2001-2002	Best Bowling Performance (LO)	7/31	DG Southwell vs Weston	2004-2005
Most Dismissals (Wkt Keeper): 52 A. Ayre (38c, 14st) 2011-2012 Most Dismissal Inning (W/K): 6 M. Carruthers (6c) 1983-1984 Most Dismissal Match (W/K): 7 JW McNamara (4c, 3st) 1952-1953 M Carruthers (6c, 1st) 1990-1991 Most Catches Season (Fielder): 21 B Dean 2013-2014 Most Catches Innings (Fielder): 5 M Wheeler 1962-1963 G Hannaford 1985-1986 A Heading 2001-2002			Creek	
Most Dismissal Inning (W/K): 6 M. Carruthers (6c) 1983-1984 Most Dismissal Match (W/K): 7 JW McNamara (4c, 3st) 1952-1953 M Carruthers (6c, 1st) 1990-1991 Most Catches Season (Fielder): 21 B Dean 2013-2014 Most Catches Innings (Fielder): 5 M Wheeler 1962-1963 G Hannaford 1985-1986 A Heading 2001-2002	Best Bowling Performance (T20)	4/14	V Dukoski vs Eastlake	2011-2012
Most Dismissal Match (W/K): 7 JW McNamara (4c, 3st) 1952-1953 M Carruthers (6c, 1st) 1990-1991 Most Catches Season (Fielder): 21 B Dean 2013-2014 Most Catches Innings (Fielder): 5 M Wheeler 1962-1963 G Hannaford 1985-1986 A Heading 2001-2002	Most Dismissals (Wkt Keeper):	52	A. Ayre (38c, 14st)	2011-2012
M Carruthers (6c, 1st) 1990-1991 Most Catches Season (Fielder): 21 B Dean 2013-2014 Most Catches Innings (Fielder): 5 M Wheeler 1962-1963 G Hannaford 1985-1986 A Heading 2001-2002	Most Dismissal Inning (W/K):	6	M. Carruthers (6c)	1983-1984
Most Catches Season (Fielder): 21 B Dean 2013-2014 Most Catches Innings (Fielder): 5 M Wheeler 1962-1963 G Hannaford 1985-1986 A Heading 2001-2002	Most Dismissal Match (W/K):	7	JW McNamara (4c, 3st)	1952-1953
Most Catches Innings (Fielder): 5 M Wheeler 1962-1963 G Hannaford 1985-1986 A Heading 2001-2002			M Carruthers (6c, 1st)	1990-1991
G Hannaford 1985-1986 A Heading 2001-2002	Most Catches Season (Fielder):	21	B Dean	2013-2014
A Heading 2001-2002	Most Catches Innings (Fielder):	5	M Wheeler	1962-1963
ĕ			G Hannaford	1985-1986
J Dean 2008-2009			A Heading	2001-2002
			J Dean	2008-2009

^{*} not out

Best Partnerships

Wicket	Runs	Batsmen	Opponent	Season
1st	200	M Frost (107) & S Frost (72)	Weston Creek	1991-1992
2nd	228	M Frost (164) & P Solway (119)	Ginninderra	1985-1986
3rd	346	P Solway (211) & R Regent (123)	Weston Creek	1990-1991
4th	166	J Bull (94) & N Bulger (75)	East's	1986-1987
5th	213	R Regent (123) & J Robson (120)	South's	1990-1991
6th	173	R Farquharson (73) & C Henry (80)	City	1984-1985
7th	109	B Dean (130) & M Curtale (56)	West's UC (GF)	2011-1912
8th	110	L Shivakumar (99) & M Solway (38)	ANU	2012-2013
9th	186	M Thornton (97) & M Carruthers (112)	Ginninderra	1985-1986
10th	85	D Rootes (24) & DG Southwell (63*)	West's UC (GF)	2011-2012

Fastest Century

2017/18 Vele Dukoski 100no (51 balls) vs North Canberra Gungahlin

Quickest Century Partnership es Peter Solway & Stephen Frost

2nd Wicket 46 Minutes Peter Solway & Stephen Frost 1989-90

2nd Grade

(formed 1927-28)

Campbell Cup Premierships

1929-1930, 1960-1961, 1976-1977, 1989-1990, 1992-1993, 2009-2010, 2012-2013

One-Day Competition

1988-1989

Twenty20 Competition

2007-2008, 2010-2011, 2012-2013, 2013-2014 2015-16

Individual Records

Best Batting Average:	65.69	P. Coleborne	2010-2011
Most Runs In A Season:	854	P. Coleborne	2010-2011
Highest Individual Score:	177	V Dukoski	2012-2013
Best Bowling Average:	8.43	P. Moon	1972-1973
Most Wickets in a Season:	65	P. Moon	1972-1973
Best Bowling Performance:	10-17	R. Kelly	1962-1963

3rd Grade

(formed 1951-52)

FG Sides Memorial Trophy Premierships

1952-1953, 1969-1970, 1982-1983, 2009-2010, 2011-2012, 2014-2015, 2015-2016, 2016-2017, 2017-18

One-Day Competition

1985-1986, 1992-1993, 2012-2013, 2013-2014, 2014-2015, 2015-2016, 2016-2017, 2017-18

Twenty20 Competition

2014-2015, 2015-2016, 2017-18

Individual Records

Best Batting Average:	123.60	P Solway	2014-2015
Most Runs In A Season:	749	G. Hannaford	2000-2001
Highest Individual Score:	213*	M. Phelps	2016-2017
Best Bowling Average:	5.41	A. Hodgson	1966-1967
Most Wickets in a Season:	65	W. Rogers	1973-1974
Best Bowling Performance:	8-18	S. Bannerman	1988-1989

4th Grade

(formed 1971-72)

Ainslie District Cricket Club Trophy Premierships

1989-1990, 2006-2007, 2008-2009, 2017-2018

One-Day Competition

1988-1989, 2009-2010, 2017-2018

Twenty20 Competition

2016-2017

Individual Records

Best Batting Average:	106.25	P. Solway	2009-2010
Most Runs In A Season:	630	P. Solway	2006-2007
Highest Individual Score:	177	I. Hamill	1999-2000
Best Bowling Average:	8.17	F. Strammandinoli	1988-1989
Most Wickets in a Season:	39	R. Warner	2000-2001
Best Bowling Performance:	7-35	P. Newham	2008-2009

5th Grade

(formed 1972-73)

Premierships

1973-1974, 1996-1997, 2010-2011, 2013-2014, 2015-2016, 2017-2018

One-Day Competition #

1986-1987, 1993-1994, 1996-1997, 2000-2001, 2001-2002

Twenty20 Competition

2007-2008

Individual Records (Post 2005)

Best Batting Average:	66.00	Dom DiCampli	2017-2018
Most Runs In A Season:	768	Peter Jensen	2013-2014
Highest Individual Score:	162*	Jono White	2017-2018
Best Bowling Average:	4.12	Troy Drayton	2015-2016
Most Wickets in a Season:	41	Troy Drayton	2015-2016
Best Bowling Performance:	7/7	John Fern	2012-2013

^{(# 2005-06 – 5}th grade was restructured into a one-day game competition)

Individual Records (Pre 2005)

Best Batting Average:	113.25	N. Bulger	1996-1997
Most Runs In A Season:	906	N. Bulger	1996-1997
Highest Individual Score:	204	N. Bulger	1996-1997
Best Bowling Average:	8.98	R. Saddler	1973-1974
Most Wickets in a Season:	45	V. Forbes	2000-2001
Best Bowling Performance:	9/100	H. Greenwell	1991-1992

6th Grade

(Formed 1994-95) Premierships 1994-1995

Individual Records

Best Batting Average:	103.7	N. Bulger	1994-1995
Most Runs In A Season:	726	N. Bulger	1994-1995
Highest Individual Score:	160	N. Bulger	1994-1995
Best Bowling Average:	10.89	R. Heading	1994-1995
Most Wickets in a Season:	28	R. Heading	1994-1995
Best Bowling Performance:	5-27	V. Forbes	1994-1995

Veterans Competitions

Over 40's (1990-91 to 2000-01) Premierships

1994-1995 1996-1997

1997-1998

(currently no individual records exist)

Over 50's (formed 2015-16)

Team Records

Highest Team Score:	9/199	vs Canberra Masters	2016-2017
#Lowest Team Score:	109	vs Goulburn Tigers	2016-2017

[#] does not include reduced over matches

Individual Records

Best Batting Average:	62.67	L Harris	2017-2018
Most Runs In A Season:	200	L Harris	2017-2018
Highest Individual Score:	42*	M Harrison	2017-2018
Best Bowling Average:	5.25	J. Fern	2015-2016
Most Wickets in a Season:	9	K Bridgen	2017-2018
Best Bowling Performance:	4/15	J. Fern	2016-2017
Most Dismissals Season (W/K):	3	R Bates	2017-2018
Most Catches Season (Fielder):	3	S. Moore	2016-2017
Most Run-outs Season:	3	M. Kennedy	2016-2017

Best Partnerships

Wicket	Runs Batsmen	Opponent	Season
1st	77 S Moore – B Connell	Goulburn Tigers	2017-2018
2nd	66 S Moore – L Kirk	Canberra Masters	2016-2017
3rd	60 S Marshall – L Kirk	Northern Eagles	2016-2017
4th	38 J Martin – L Kirk	Goulburn Tigers	2016-2017
5th	33 L Kirk – L Harris	Northern Eagles Blue	2017-2018
6th	27 J Fern – P Baker	Demons	2016-2017
7th	No partnerships of 25 runs or greater		
8th	46 R Calvert – J Fern	Canberra Masters	2016-2017
9th	34* R Bates – B Turner	Northern Eagles Gold	2017-2018
10th	No partnerships of 25 runs or greater		

Women's

(Formed 1984-85) Premierships

1984-1985

Individual Records

Best Batting Average:	128.0	E Preston	2007-2008
Most Runs In A Season:	491	L Cook	1984-1985
Highest Individual Score:	108*	L Cook	1984-1985
Best Bowling Average:	5.33	L Cook	1984-1985
Most Wickets in a Season:	49	L Cook	1984-1985
Best Bowling Performance:	5-0	H. Jones	2002-2003

Best Partnerships

Wkt	Runs	Batsmen	Opponent	Season
1st	143	V Picker (62) & T Wallace (59)	Tuggeranong	2008-2009
2nd	110	H Jones (50*) & J Morris (55)	North Canberra Gungahlin	2004-2005
3rd	86	V Picker (55) & E Preston (48)	Eastlake	2006-2007
4th	97	E Preston (82*) & J Knight (41)	Tuggeranong	2007-2008
5th	50	J Morris (36) & K Mollison (6)	North Canberra Gungahlin	2005-2006
6th	38	V King (26*) & E Parkinson (0)	Great Impressions	2009-2010
7th	50	V Picker (32*) & A Baker (15)	North Canberra Gungahlin	2005-2006
8th	84	V Picker (22) & K Mollison (33)	ANU	2004-2005

Glenda Hall Individual Records

Best Batting Average:	26.0	Sina Leis	2009-2010
Most Runs In A Season:	80	Georgie Leahey-Butler	2009-2010
Highest Individual Score:	39	Georgie Leahey-Butler	2009-2010
Best Bowling Average:	13.65	Kirsten Frkic	2009-2010
Most Wickets in a Season:	6	Kirsten Frkic	2009-2010
Best Bowling Performance:	3/7	Kirsten Frkic	2009-2010

Best Partnerships

Wkt	Runs	Batsmen	Opponent	Season
1st	40	G Leahey-Butler (20*) & K Frkic (55)	North Canberra Gungahlin	2009-2010
2nd	56	J Knight (22) & G Leahey-Butler (11)	Tuggeranong	2009-2010
3rd	43	E Parkinson (19*) & T Claridge (13)	ANU	2009-2010
4th	35	K Frkic (29*) & M Mayoh (15*)	North Canberra Gungahlin	2009-2010
5th	68	V King (21) & G Leahey-Butler (39)	Western Districts UC	2009-2010

Appendix A – Season Statistics

	Batting											
Name	Mat	Inns	NOs	Runs	HS	Ave	50's	100's	Ducks			
Felix Ahmed	7	2	1	2	2*	2.00	0	0	1			
Tanveer Ahmed	2	2	1	27	24*	27.00	0	0	0			
Graeme Alexander	19	17	4	272	51	20.92	1	0	2			
Ben Allen	9	3	1	41	23	20.50	0	0	0			
Jack Allen	19	9	8	124	106*	124.00	0	1	1			
Peter Baker	6	6	0	32	17	5.33	0	0	2			
Ron Bates	10	8	1	43	17*	6.14	0	0	1			
Felix Bennett	5	3	2	4	4	4.00	0	0	0			
Vinesh Bennett	12	8	2	199	93	33.17	1	0	1			
Lincoln Blissett	22	18	3	562	107	37.47	3	1	2			
Keith Bridgen	9	8	6	113	32*	56.50	0	0	0			
Stuart Bridgen	18	16	1	262	39	17.47	0	0	2			
Jordan Brown	8	4	1	15	11*	5.00	0	0	2			
Adrian Brunker	18	16	3	557	105*	42.85	2	1	1			
John Brunker	4	2	0	0	0	0.00	0	0	2			
Duane Bush	15	15	1	249	55*	17.79	1	0	2			
Oliver Cheatle	19	6	3	38	15	12.67	0	0	0			
Thomas Christou	17	9	4	53	18	10.60	0	0	3			
Daniel Clugston	17	11	0	128	27	11.64	0	0	1			
Brian Connell	5	5	0	63	33	12.60	0	0	1			
Adam Couch	17	10	5	106	33	21.20	0	0	0			
Stephen Cross	20	16	2	375	128*	26.79	1	1	2			
Matthew Cutler	19	22	4	492	56	27.33	3	0	1			
Greg Dawes	2	1	0	5	5	5.00	0	0	0			
Mark Dennison	3	3	0	13	7	4.33	0	0	0			
Dom Di-Campli	18	16	7	589	82	65.44	3	0	1			
Rory Di-Campli	20	17	2	178	37*	11.87	0	0	1			
James Dimarhos	19	20	5	517	114	34.47	1	1	1			
Khye Ditton	14	12	0	471	117	39.25	2	1	0			
Rohan Ditton	10	10	1	165	35	18.33	0	0	0			
Christopher Doyle	10	8	0	69	32	8.63	0	0	1			
Vele Dukoski	18	19	1	569	135	31.61	1	2	3			
Cameron Edgar	16	15	2	242	35*	18.62	0	0	2			
Ashley Edwards	5	3	1	16	9	8.00	0	0	0			
Kel Evans	10	11	0	190	67	17.27	1	0	1			
Joshua Fahey	7	6	1	53	30*	10.60	0	0	1			
Simon Fahey	10	9	1	150	60	18.75	1	0	1			
Bradley Falkenberg	15	14	2	443	85	36.92	3	0	2			
John Fern	19	11	1	107	27	10.70	0	0	2			
Mitchell Fern	17	8	4	21	6*	5.25	0	0	0			
Glenn Flatley	1	1	0	14	14	14.00	0	0	0			
Benjamin Forbes	5	3	0	5	5	1.67	0	0	2			
Oliver Fox	10	7	1	45	20	7.50	0	0	1			
Tony Fraser	3	3	0	32	14	10.67	0	0	0			

	Batting												
Name	Mat	Inns	NOs	Runs	HS	Ave	50's	100's	Ducks				
Michael Frost	5	4	1	89	35*	29.67	0	0	0				
Samuel Frost	17	16	1	280	94	18.67	1	0	2				
Chris Gane	17	17	0	425	62	25.00	1	0	0				
Guy Gillespie	7	4	0	149	83	37.25	1	0	0				
Michael Gilshenan	4	4	2	83	46*	41.50	0	0	1				
Sid Girish	20	22	3	317	73	16.68	1	0	3				
William Graham	21	7	4	19	11	6.33	0	0	0				
Joshua Gregory	16	14	0	174	67	12.43	1	0	1				
Matthew Grocott	3	2	0	68	59	34.00	1	0	0				
Ian Hamill	6	6	2	129	40*	32.25	0	0	0				
Matthew Harding	15	12	2	147	32	14.70	0	0	2				
Leslie Harris	7	7	3	200	41*	50.00	0	0	0				
Murray Harrison	1	1	1	42	42*	na	0	0	0				
Nicholas Harvey	7	4	2	11	7	5.50	0	0	1				
Jasper Haskins	10	5	1	19	13*	4.75	0	0	3				
Adam Heading	4	4	0	133	67	33.25	1	0	0				
Jordan Hedington	3	2	0	1	1	0.50	0	0	1				
David Horsfall	19	17	2	557	155	37.13	2	1	2				
Peter Jensen	19	13	4	209	59*	23.22	1	0	2				
Angus Jones	8	8	2	131	104*	21.83	0	1	2				
Martin Kennedy	6	4	0	12	6	3.00	0	0	1				
Lawrie Kirk	6	6	0	61	28	10.17	0	0	0				
Dane Klower	6	4	1	23	8	7.67	0	0	0				
Tristan Klower	21	11	3	65	19	8.13	0	0	3				
Angus Knox	2	2	0	11	11	5.50	0	0	1				
Abhinash Kumar	16	16	1	285	49	19.00	0	0	0				
Geoff Ledger	1	1	0	9	9	9.00	0	0	0				
Jay Ludwig	8	6	0	106	54	17.67	1	0	0				
Jeremy Macdonald	18	20	4	321	111	20.06	0	1	3				
David Mankey	3	3	0	59	33	19.67	0	0	0				
Jack Manners	19	15	7	138	40*	17.25	0	0	3				
Micah Manners	21	18	2	321	45*	20.06	0	0	2				
James Martin	26	16	8	158	40	19.75	0	0	1				
Ryan Martin	6	10	0	0	0	0.00	0	0	1				
Blake McCarten	11	10	1	144	52	16.00	1	0	1				
Braiden McCarten	20	21	3	439	67	24.39	1	0	2				
Ron McGlashan	1	1	0	7	7	7.00	0	0	0				
Michael Medved	18	10	2	54	25*	6.75	0	0	2				
Brad Millynn	4	3	2	11	2 <i>5</i> 5*	11.00	0	0	0				
Alexander Mitton	13	6	1	80	42	16.00	0	0	2				
Rizwan Momin	13	13	0	225	95	17.31	1	0	3				
Brad Moore	19	13	6	137	38*	17.31	0	0	2				
	19	20	7	362	36* 76*	27.85	1	0	1				
Philip Moore	18	20 9	2	188	41*	26.86	0	0					
Stephen Moore Wilson Morshead	3	3	0	30	17	10.00	0	0	1				
Matt O'Brien		3 7		18	17	3.00		0	1 3				
	14 16		1 2		23*		0		2				
Rory O'Brien	16	12	2	113	25"	11.30	0	0	2				

Batting												
Name	Mat	Inns	NOs	Runs	HS	Ave	50's	100's	Ducks			
Harry O'Rourke	6	2	0	18	16	9.00	0	0	0			
Michael O'Rourke	6	6	1	364	116*	72.80	1	2	0			
Alex Page	2	2	0	12	9	6.00	0	0	0			
Anup Pereira	9	5	0	4	2	0.80	0	0	3			
Thomas Phelps	12	13	2	257	50	23.36	1	0	0			
Joe Quarmby	1	1	0	5	5	5.00	0	0	0			
Matthew Rebus	7	5	1	41	18	10.25	0	0	0			
Josh Sands	5	4	0	32	13	8.00	0	0	0			
Dean Solway	18	18	2	544	116	34.00	2	1	2			
Mark Solway	18	18	2	313	63*	19.56	2	0	1			
Peter Solway	22	14	4	624	115*	62.40	2	3	0			
Peter Somerville	4	4	2	87	40*	43.50	0	0	0			
Darren Southwell	21	12	5	96	21	13.71	0	0	0			
Michael Spaseski	18	19	1	657	125	36.50	2	1	1			
Michael Stachow	22	21	5	776	110	48.50	7	1	2			
Hamish Starr	16	9	4	53	15	10.60	0	0	1			
Zachary Starr	16	13	2	133	34	12.09	0	0	1			
Aaron Thorn	20	19	0	139	28	7.32	0	0	4			
Ben Thurling	2	2	0	15	13	7.50	0	0	0			
Bill Turner	7	6	3	46	23*	15.33	0	0	2			
Luin Tyler Van	18	12	5	205	56	29.29	1	0	0			
Tom Walker	1	1	0	0	0	0.00	0	0	1			
Jonathan White	18	17	5	669	162*	55.75	3	1	1			
Paul Wylks	1	1	0	25	25	25.00	0	0	0			

Bowling											
Name	Mtch	Overs	Mdns	Wkts	Runs	Ave	B/B	S/R	E/R	5w/Inn	10w/Mtch
Felix Ahmed	7	35	2	4	106	26.50	2/10	52.50	3.03	0	0
Tanveer Ahmed	2	27.5	5	2	66	33.00	1/32	83.50	2.40	0	0
Graeme Alexander	19	107	19	15	261	17.40	3/10	42.80	2.44	0	0
Ben Allen	9	30	2	11	126	11.45	5/29	16.36	4.20	1	0
Jack Allen	19	121.3	10	23	489	21.26	6/46	31.70	4.03	1	0
Peter Baker	6	31.4	3	7	151	21.57	3/29	27.14	4.81	0	0
Ron Bates	10	4	0	2	19	9.50	2/6	12.00	4.75	0	0
Felix Bennett	5	30.3	9	4	64	16.00	2/28	45.75	2.11	0	0
Vinesh Bennett	12	98.5	27	14	223	15.93	3/9	42.36	2.26	0	0
Lincoln Blissett	22	113	12	22	384	17.45	3/40	30.82	3.40	0	0
Keith Bridgen	9	53.1	5	9	242	26.89	3/15	35.44	4.56	0	0
Stuart Bridgen	18	25.4	3	6	137	22.83	2/7	25.67	5.39	0	0
Jordan Brown	8	76	17	18	232	12.89	4/19	25.33	3.05	0	0
Adrian Brunker	18	1	0	0	6	na	0/6	na	6.00	0	0
John Brunker	4	7	0	0	44	na	0/13	na	6.29	0	0
Duane Bush	15	33.5	2	8	135	16.88	4/30	25.38	4.03	0	0
Grant Butler	3	6	0	0	43	na	0/20	na	7.17	0	0
Oliver Cheatle	19	168.2	26	33	576	17.45	3/15	30.61	3.42	0	0
Thomas Christou	17	140.5	31	34	369	10.85	6/32	24.85	2.63	2	0
Daniel Clugston	17	106	19	24	275	11.46	5/16	26.50	2.59	1	0
Brian Connell	5	6	0	2	43	21.50	2/9	18.00	7.17	0	0
Adam Couch	17	120.3	24	14	372	26.57	2/7	51.64	3.09	0	0
Matthew Cutler	19	1	0	0	4	na	0/4	na	4.00	0	0
Dom Di-Campli	18	18.5	6	6	47	7.83	2/16	18.83	2.54	0	0
Rory Di-Campli	20	50.1	10	10	125	12.50	4/3	30.10	2.50	0	0
James Dimarhos	19	2	0	0	12	na	0/12	na	6.00	0	0
Khye Ditton	14	162.3	69	27	307	11.37	4/31	36.11	1.89	0	0

Bowling											
Name	Mtch	Overs	Mdns	Wkts	Runs	Ave	B/B	S/R	E/R	5w/Inn	10w/Mtch
Vele Dukoski	18	197.3	31	26	707	27.19	5/56	45.58	3.58	1	0
Cameron Edgar	16	113.3	28	27	338	12.52	3/8	25.22	2.98	0	0
Kel Evans	10	19.5	2	5	91	18.20	2/4	23.80	4.67	0	0
Joshua Fahey	7	14	1	4	42	10.50	2/7	21.00	3.00	0	0
Simon Fahey	10	59.3	6	10	241	24.10	3/30	35.70	4.06	0	0
Bradley Falkenberg	15	1	0	0	13	na	0/13	na	13.00	0	0
John Fern	19	118.5	30	26	287	11.04	4/24	27.42	2.42	0	0
Mitchell Fern	17	71.2	7	15	293	19.53	2/16	28.53	4.12	0	0
Benjamin Forbes	5	17	1	5	108	21.60	2/24	20.40	6.35	0	0
Oliver Fox	10	21	0	1	113	113.00	1/21	126.0	5.38	0	0
Tony Fraser	3	5	0	1	22	22.00	1/22	30.00	4.40	0	0
Michael Frost	5	6	3	2	19	9.50	2/19	18.00	3.17	0	0
Samuel Frost	17	33.3	7	10	105	10.50	2/2	20.10	3.15	0	0
Guy Gillespie	7	64.1	14	9	211	23.44	4/104	42.78	3.29	0	0
Michael Gilshenan	4	1	0	0	7	na	0/7	na	7.00	0	0
William Graham	21	209.4	54	31	512	16.52	5/20	40.58	2.45	1	0
Joshua Gregory	16	12	0	1	51	51.00	1/23	72.00	4.25	0	0
Matthew Grocott	3	10.3	1	4	52	13.00	3/43	15.75	5.05	0	0
Ian Hamill	6	6	0	1	44	44.00	1/18	36.00	7.33	0	0
Leslie Harris	7	2	0	0	18	na	0/18	na	9.00	0	0
Murray Harrison	1	4	2	1	5	5.00	1/5	24.00	1.25	0	0
Nicholas Harvey	7	33.1	4	3	146	48.67	1/11	66.33	4.41	0	0
Jasper Haskins	10	28	0	3	140	46.67	1/30	56.00	5.00	0	0
Adam Heading	4	7	0	1	31	31.00	1/9	42.00	4.43	0	0
David Horsfall	19	4	0	1	12	12.00	1/9	24.00	3.00	0	0
Max Hunter	2	10	0	2	48	24.00	2/24	30.00	4.80	0	0
Peter Jensen	19	165	40	26	413	15.88	3/15	38.08	2.50	0	0
Angus Jones	8	19	5	5	24	4.80	3/10	22.80	1.26	0	0

Bowling											
Name	Mtch	Overs	Mdns	Wkts	Runs	Ave	B/B	S/R	E/R	5w/Inn	10w/Mtch
Martin Kennedy	6	32	0	1	132	132.00	1/20	192.0	4.13	0	0
Lawrie Kirk	6	23.3	0	4	121	30.25	2/24	35.25	5.19	0	0
Dane Klower	6	22	1	3	70	23.33	2/8	44.00	3.18	0	0
Tristan Klower	21	151	30	34	491	14.44	4/17	26.65	3.25	0	0
Abhinash Kumar	16	108.3	16	17	339	19.94	3/40	38.29	3.13	0	0
Geoff Ledger	1	7	2	1	23	23.00	1/23	42.00	3.29	0	0
Jay Ludwig	8	29	1	5	149	29.80	2/43	34.80	5.14	0	0
David Mankey	3	11	1	2	40	20.00	2/29	33.00	3.64	0	0
Micah Manners	21	130	28	28	356	12.71	4/19	27.86	2.74	0	0
James Martin	26	144.4	24	32	513	16.03	4/15	27.13	3.55	0	0
Ryan Martin	6	25	2	10	96	9.60	5/15	15.00	3.84	1	0
Braiden McCarten	20	8.4	1	2	38	19.00	1/0	26.00	4.52	0	0
Ron McGlashan	1	4	0	0	15	na	0/15	na	3.75	0	0
Michael Medved	18	2	0	0	24	na	0/24	na	12.00	0	0
Brad Millynn	4	37	10	5	79	15.80	2/14	44.40	2.14	0	0
Alexander Mitton	13	97	17	21	282	13.43	4/15	27.71	2.91	0	0
Rizwan Momin	13	18.5	4	1	47	47.00	1/16	113.0	2.54	0	0
Matt O'Brien	14	28.3	6	7	135	19.29	3/13	24.43	4.77	0	0
Rory O'Brien	16	51.3	13	9	130	14.44	2/4	34.33	2.53	0	0
Harry O'Rourke	6	63	29	4	99	24.75	2/19	94.50	1.57	0	0
Michael O'Rourke	6	36	16	3	57	19.00	2/14	72.00	1.58	0	0
Alex Page	2	10.2	2	1	41	41.00	1/22	62.00	4.02	0	0
Anup Pereira	9	10.4	0	1	64	64.00	1/7	64.00	6.15	0	0
Thomas Phelps	12	46	8	7	153	21.86	2/13	39.43	3.33	0	0
Matthew Rebus	7	15	2	3	48	16.00	2/17	30.00	3.20	0	0
Josh Sands	5	9	1	0	29	na	0/3	na	3.22	0	0
Dean Solway	18	12.3	1	0	75	na	0/1	na	6.10	0	0
Mark Solway	18	174	17	22	704	32.00	4/52	47.45	4.05	0	0

Bowling											
Name	Mtch	Overs	Mdns	Wkts	Runs	Ave	B/B	S/R	E/R	5w/Inn	10w/Mtch
Peter Solway	22	1	0	0	4	na	0/4	na	4.00	0	0
Peter Somerville	4	3	0	0	38	na	0/38	na	12.67	0	0
Darren Southwell	21	280	89	56	767	13.70	5/18	30.00	2.74	2	0
Dean Southwell	1	10	1	1	43	43.00	1/43	60.00	4.30	0	0
Michael Spaseski	18	167.4	24	32	664	20.75	4/33	31.44	3.97	0	0
Michael Stachow	22	168.5	42	35	412	11.77	6/18	28.94	2.45	1	0
Hamish Starr	16	136.2	20	22	506	23.00	5/37	37.18	3.72	1	0
Zachary Starr	16	95.3	17	11	399	36.27	3/61	52.09	4.19	0	0
Aaron Thorn	20	10	1	0	60	na	0/1	na	6.00	0	0
Ben Thurling	2	2	0	0	14	na	0/14	na	7.00	0	0
Bill Turner	7	40	8	5	180	36.00	2/9	48.00	4.50	0	0
Luin Tyler Van	18	178.1	37	31	637	20.55	4/37	34.48	3.58	0	0
Beau Watts	3	14	2	2	54	27.00	1/25	42.00	3.86	0	0
Jonathan White	18	1	0	0	12	na	0/12	na	12.00	0	0

	Fieldin	g & Wi	cket-ke	eping		
Name	Matches	Catches	Catches (w/k)	Stumpings	Run Outs	Total
Felix Ahmed	7	3	0	0	0	3
Graeme Alexander	19	7	0	0	0	7
Ben Allen	9	1	0	0	1	2
Jack Allen	19	10	0	0	0	10
Ron Bates	10	1	1	2	0	4
Vinesh Bennett	12	4	0	0	1	5
Lincoln Blissett	22	5	0	0	1	6
Keith Bridgen	9	3	0	0	0	3
Stuart Bridgen	18	5	1	0	0	6
Jordan Brown	8	1	0	0	0	1
Adrian Brunker	18	11	1	0	1	13
Duane Bush	15	5	0	0	1	6
Oliver Cheatle	19	5	0	0	2	7
Thomas Christou	17	3	0	0	0	3
Daniel Clugston	17	1	0	0	0	1
Brian Connell	5	2	0	0	0	2
Adam Couch	17	8	0	0	0	8
Stephen Cross	20	7	0	0	1	8
Matthew Cutler	19	5	0	0	3	8
Dom Di-Campli	18	9	0	0	2	11
Rory Di-Campli	20	3	0	0	0	3
James Dimarhos	19	2	0	0	0	2
Khye Ditton	14	3	0	0	0	3
Rohan Ditton	10	5	0	0	0	5
Vele Dukoski	18	4	0	0	2	6
Cameron Edgar	16	5	0	0	0	5
Ashley Edwards	5	0	0	0	2	2
Kel Evans	10	4	0	0	1	5
Joshua Fahey	7	3	0	0	0	3
Simon Fahey	10	1	0	0	0	1
Bradley Falkenberg	15	2	1	3	0	6
John Fern	19	1	0	0	1	2
Mitchell Fern	17	2	0	0	0	2
Benjamin Forbes	5	3	0	0	0	3
Samuel Frost	17	4	0	0	1	5
Chris Gane	17	15	0	0	1	16
Guy Gillespie	7	3	0	0	0	3
Michael Gilshenan	4	1	0	0	1	2
Siddharth Girish	20	7	0	0	0	7
William Graham	21	3	0	0	3	6
	16	9	_	0		10
Joshua Gregory Matthew Grocott	3		$0 \\ 0$	0	$\begin{array}{c} 1 \\ 0 \end{array}$	
Ian Hamill	6	1 2	_	_		1
			0	0	0	2 12
Matthew Harding	15	8	1	0	3	
Adam Heading	4	1	0	0	0	1
Jordan Hedington	3	1	0	0	0	1 10
David Horsfall	19	0	9	0	1	10
Angus Jones	8	2	0	0	1	3

Fielding & Wicket-keeping												
Name	Matches	Catches	Catches (w/k)	Stumpings	Run Outs	Total						
Martin Kennedy	6	0	0	0	1	1						
Dane Klower	6	3	0	0	0	3						
Tristan Klower	21	5	0	0	0	5						
Abhinash Kumar	16	2	0	0	1	3						
Jay Ludwig	8	3	0	0	0	3						
Jeremy Macdonald	18	13	0	0	1	14						
Jack Manners	19	1	8	4	0	13						
Micah Manners	21	10	0	0	0	10						
James Martin	26	5	0	0	1	6						
Ryan Martin	6	2	0	0	1	3						
Blake McCarten	11	0	14	1	0	15						
Braiden McCarten	20	6	0	0	0	6						
Michael Medved	18	0	30	3	0	33						
Brad Millynn	4	2	0	0	0	2						
Alexander Mitton	13	3	0	0	1	4						
Rizwan Momin	13	1	0	1	0	2						
Brad Moore	19	1	28	4	0	33						
Philip Moore	18	3	0	0	0	3						
Stephen Moore	9	2	2	0	0	4						
Wilson Morshead	3	1	0	0	0	1						
Matt O'Brien	14	1	0	0	0	1						
Rory O'Brien	16	6	0	0	3	9						
Harry O'Rourke	6	1	0	0	0	1						
Michael O'Rourke	6	2	0	0	0	2						
Anup Pereira	9	0	0	0	1	1						
Thomas Phelps	12	2	0	0	1	3						
Matthew Rebus	7	3	0	0	1	4						
Josh Sands	5	1	0	0	0	1						
Dean Solway	18	5	0	0	0	5						
Mark Solway	18	8	0	0	2	10						
Peter Solway	22	8	0	0	2	10						
Peter Somerville	4	0	0	0	1	1						
Darren Southwell	21	7	0	0	1	8						
Michael Spaseski	18	5	0	0	0	5						
Michael Stachow	22	11	0	0	0	11						
Hamish Starr	16	5	0	0	0	5						
Aaron Thorn	20	1	10	3	2	16						
Ben Thurling	2	1	0	0	0	1						
Bill Turner	7	1	0	0	0	1						
Luin Tyler Van	18	4	0	0	0	4						
Jonathan White	18	4	3	1	5	13						
Paul Wylks	1	1	0	0	0	1						

Fielding records are not 100% complete as information is sometimes omitted in the scorebooks.